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FOREwARd

Heritage is important in understanding the story of Western Australia – its history, identity and diversity.

Heritage is diverse and consists of places such as buildings and structures, monuments, gardens, 
cemeteries, landscapes, and archaeological sites.

As a community, we share the responsibility to identify and protect what is important, and pass on these 
places to future generations so they will understand what came before them.

In 1990, the State Government passed the Heritage of Western Australia Act to provide a framework in 
which to recognise, conserve, promote and celebrate heritage for the benefit of the Western Australian 
community.

The Act established the Heritage Council of Western Australia, as the State Government’s advisory and 
statutory body on heritage, and the State Register of Heritage Places. The Heritage Council is supported 
by the State Heritage Office, which is a branch of State Government. 

The State Register of Heritage Places is a statutory list of places in Western Australia of cultural heritage 
significance to the State.

Entry into the Register recognises the value and importance of a place and helps to promote its 
conservation into the future. Places are entered on the State Register after a rigorous assessment 
process, which includes extensive consultation with owners, local governments and interested 
stakeholders.

There are 1,338 places throughout Western Australia that are on the State Register – from the Main 
Pump Station in Kununurra in our north, Cape Leeuwin Lighthouse in the south, and the Gwalia 
Townsite in the east.

The Heritage Council and the State Heritage Office works with Western Australians to recognise, 
conserve, adapt and celebrate our State’s unique cultural heritage.

The 2011/12 Annual Report provides an overview of the work undertaken by the Heritage Council and 
the State Heritage Office to achieve these goals and ensure that heritage continues to be recognised as 
integral to the vibrant life and prosperity of Western Australia.
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1.1 VisiON ANd ObjECTiVEs 

Our vision
Heritage is integral to the vibrant life and prosperity of Western Australia.

Our mission
Working with Western Australians to recognise, conserve, adapt and celebrate our State’s 
unique cultural heritage.

Our values
 ■ Integrity
 ■ Respect

 ■ Professionalism
 ■ Collegiality

 ■ Innovation
 ■ Excellence

 ■ Diversity
 ■ Service

Our Objectives
 ■ To comprehensively identify and chronicle the places that represent the story of  

Western Australia’s history and development.
 ■ To promote the sound conservation, successful adaptation and harmonious 

development of Western Australia’s heritage places.
 ■ To increase appreciation of the importance of heritage places to Western Australians’ 

identity and quality of life.

1.0 OVERViEw

Background image: Interpretation panels inside the 
Bairds Building celebrates its former life as a department store.
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1.2 HigHLigHTs

This Annual Report provides a review of the Heritage Council and State Heritage Office operations for the financial year ended  
30 June 2012.

Assessment and Registration
 ■ 20 places were registered on the  

State Register of Heritage Places  
on an interim basis.

 ■ 29 places were registered on the  
State Register of Heritage Places  
on a permanent basis.

 ■ 46 places were referred to the State 
Heritage Office for a preliminary review 
under the Government Heritage 
Property Disposal Process.

Grants Assistance
 ■ 20 projects shared in approximately  

$1million of grant funding, delivering 
more than $2million in conservation 
works to State heritage listed properties 
across WA.

 ■ $3,412,367 from $5million in funding 
has been allocated to projects for the 
Goldfields Earthquake Restoration 
Fund.

Development Referrals
 ■ 981 development referrals were 

determined during the year.
 ■ The Heritage Council and the State 

Heritage Office have been actively 
involved in major WA developments 
including Perth City Link, Elizabeth 
Quay, and the Old Treasury Building 
redevelopment.

Heritage of Western Australia 
Amendment Regulations 2012

 ■ New regulations have resulted in 
owners of State Registered places 
no longer being required by law to 
seek Heritage Council advice on 
maintenance and minor works to  
their properties. 

Relocation and Brand Refresh
 ■ The Heritage Council and the State 

Heritage Office moved to the restored 
Bairds Building in Wellington Street, 
Perth.

 ■ The Office of Heritage was rebranded 
to the State Heritage Office to better 
reflect its role as a branch of State 
Government supporting the Heritage 
Council.

 ■ A new website was launched to provide 
easy access to information for owners 
and other stakeholders, and to highlight 
outstanding examples of conservation 
and adaptation of heritage buildings.
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1.3 HERiTAgE COUNCiL OVERViEw

On behalf of the Heritage Council of Western Australia, I am delighted to present the  
Annual Report 2011/12, detailing the organisation’s activities during the past 12 months.

It has been a year of major achievements for 
the Heritage Council with a number of new 
initiatives and legislative changes that respond 
to the challenges we face in the future care 
and management of the State’s heritage.

In March, the Heritage Council released its 
Strategic Plan, which establishes our key 
objectives and strategies, and priority projects 
for the next three years.

These include:
 ■ Completing the review of the Heritage 

of Western Australia Act.
 ■ Review and reforming our business 

practices and processes.
 ■ Moving to premises that showcase 

contemporary adaptive reuse and 
gain co-location benefits with other 
government departments.

 ■ Complete and launch a new heritage 
online places database.

And I am pleased to say that we have already 
achieved a number of those goals.

In March, the Heritage Minister announced 
new regulations to cut red tape for owners of 
State Registered heritage places.

These regulations ensure that owners are 
no longer required by law to seek Heritage 
Council advice on maintenance and some 
minor works to their properties. This provides 
much needed certainty to owners, and allows 
them to maintain their properties without 
unnecessary paperwork and delay. This 
initiative also allows the Heritage Council and 
the State Heritage Office to focus resources 
where they are most needed.

During the year, the Heritage Council through 
the State Heritage Office made excellent 
progress in the review of the Heritage 
of Western Australia Act 1990, aimed at 
developing contemporary legislation that is 
better suited to meeting the challenges we 
face in the care and management of heritage 
today and into the future. This review was 
the first major initiative from the State Cultural 
Heritage Policy, launched in April 2011. I would 
like to thank all those who participated in 
the two phases of public consultation which 
assisted us in shaping the final report to the 
Minister for Heritage, the Hon GM (John) 
Castrilli MLA. Minister Castrilli is now seeking 
the support of his Cabinet colleagues to 

progress to the drafting of a Green Bill,  
which will be open for public comment.

This year, there was a shift in direction for the 
Heritage Grants Program, requiring private 
owners of State Registered heritage properties 
to match funds to grants. This strategy 
was aimed at encouraging greater owner 
involvement and commitment to conserving 
their properties while increasing the overall 
investment and heritage outcomes  
generated from State Government funds. 

aBove: Heritage Council Chair Mrs Marion Fulker

http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/docs/general-publications/strategic_plan_2012final.pdf?sfvrsn=2
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/acts-policies/review-of-the-act
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/acts-policies/state-cultural-heritage-policy
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/acts-policies/state-cultural-heritage-policy
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I am very pleased to say that this year’s 
Heritage Grants Program will deliver more 
than $2million in conservation works to State 
heritage listed properties across Western 
Australia. 

In addition, the Heritage Minister announced in 
May that the Heritage Grants Program would 
be increased by 25 per cent, with an additional 
$1.046million allocated over four years. This 
is the first increase in the program since its 
inception in 1996/97 and will deliver more than 
$10million in conservation works to privately 
owned State Registered places over the next 
four years. The additional funding illustrates the 
importance that the State Government places 
on supporting private owners with the cost of 
conservation works to their State Registered 
properties. 

The increase to the Heritage Grants Program 
and the new regulations are indicative of the 
work undertaken by the Heritage Council 
and the State Heritage Office to advocate for 
changes that will make a real difference to 
owners of State Registered heritage places.

The new heritage online database ‘inHerit’ 
is also nearing practical completion with 
the public launch set for 23 July 2012. This 
database is the first time that local government 

Municipal Inventories and heritage lists will 
be made available centrally online with full 
descriptive information, images, spatial 
mapping, and street view functions. inHerit 
brings together information on more than 
23,000 State and local heritage-listed places 
online.

I would like to congratulate the nominees, 
finalists and winners of the 2012 Western 
Australian Heritage Awards. These individuals 
and organisations make an invaluable 
contribution to the conservation, adaptive 
reuse and promotion of heritage. This year, the 
awards were elevated through an agreement 
with United Nations Educational, Scientific and 
Cultural Organisation (UNESCO) which saw 
winners and high commendation recipients 
in the conservation and adaptive reuse 
categories shortlisted for nomination to the 
UNESCO Asia Pacific Awards. The awards are 
due to be announced soon and we wish our 
Western Australian nominees all the best.

This past year has been a very successful 
one for the Heritage Council and for heritage 
in general, with many of our State Registered 
heritage places at the forefront of a range of 
significant urban and regional developments 
that have reached or are nearing completion.

But we still face many challenges in the coming 
years to shift the perception of heritage as a 
barrier to development to being a vital part 
of our community. During the past few years, 
the Heritage Council and the State Heritage 
Office have been proactively engaging with 
our stakeholders as we reposition ourselves 
as an expert advisory body on heritage rather 
than purely a regulatory body. This is part of 
a wider move to adopt a more contemporary 
view of heritage management that reflects the 
objectives of the Burra Charter and applying 
these to meet today’s needs for viable and 
sustainable development. This positive 
engagement strategy is paying dividends with 
industry now seeking us out during the early 
stages of development, providing a greater 
opportunity to work with and contribute to 
project development, resulting in better heritage 
outcomes across the board.

I would like to thank my fellow Council 
members who have shared this journey with 
me and have given their time so willingly for 
good effect and have diligently shared their 
heritage expertise. In particular, I would like to 
highlight the contribution of heritage architect 
Philip Griffiths who celebrated 20 years on the 
Council. 

http://inherit.stateheritage.wa.gov.au/public
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/education-research-events/heritage-awards
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/education-research-events/heritage-awards
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On behalf of the Heritage Council and the 
State Heritage Office staff, I would like to thank 
the Minister for Heritage, the Hon GM (John) 
Castrilli MLA for his strong support of the 
Heritage Council and his vision for Western 
Australia’s heritage.

I would also like to extend my thanks to the 
Heritage Council’s Register Committee and 
Development Committee members for their 
commitment throughout the year and the 
Regional Heritage Advisory team for their hard 
work in assisting with heritage in the regional 
areas.

And finally, I express the Council’s appreciation 
to the State Heritage Office management 
and staff for their achievements and service 
delivery. I have been impressed with the 
dedication of the team and the positive results 
and events that have characterised 2011/12 
as a successful year.

Marion Fulker 
Chair 
Heritage Council of WA

aBove: His Excellency Mr Malcolm McCusker AC CVO QC, Mrs Tonya McCusker, Minister for Heritage the Hon GM (John) 
Castrilli and Heritage Council Chair Marion Fulker with the 2012 State heritage champions.



 h e r i t a g e  c o u n c i l  o f  W e s t e r n  a u s t r a l i a    9    a n n u a l  r e p o r t  2 0 1 1 / 1 2

1.4 sTATE HERiTAgE OFFiCE OVERViEw

The move to the Bairds Building in March 2012 marked a new chapter for the  
State Heritage Office, allowing it to consolidate the organisational changes  
implemented over the past few years into a cohesive new direction.

The State Heritage Office achieved a long 
held objective to move into a building that 
reflects how heritage can be adapted to new 
uses. The Bairds Building, part of the State 
Registered William and Wellington Streets 
Precinct, was a former department store that 
has been transformed into modern office 
spaces.

The move to Bairds is part of the wider State 
Government’s Accommodation Master Plan 
to consolidate government departments into 
centralised locations. The Office is sharing the 
Bairds tenancy with the Government Architect.

Bairds is part of the one40william complex that 
includes Gordon Stephenson House, home 
to a range of State Government departments 
- including Local Government, Planning, 
Treasury, Transport, and Culture and the Arts.

This relocation has already created greater 
synergies between our agencies, which can 
only result in positive outcomes for the care 
and management of our State heritage. 
Importantly, it has also allowed the Office to 
work more closely with and share resources 
with the Department of Local Government.

The shift in premises was the catalyst for a 
major overhaul of information systems. This 
included migration from Apple Macintosh to 
Windows PCs and decommissioning of on-site 
servers. This has significantly increased data 
security through replacement with an off-site 
data centre solution.

The move also presented an ideal opportunity 
to refresh and rebrand from the Office of 
Heritage to the State Heritage Office to 
better reflect our role as a branch of State 
Government supporting the Heritage Council.

The name change was designed to clarify 
the Heritage Council and the State Heritage 
Office’s services and messages within the 
community, promote a deeper understanding 
of roles and functions of each entity, and 
reduce the confusion between the different 
heritage agencies, groups and lists.

It consolidates reforms and changes in 
governance and service delivery that arose out 
of the 2009 Functional Review, which led to 
transformational change for both the Council 
and the Office. It also addresses a key finding 
of a subsequent Stakeholder Engagement 

Report, which identified confusion across all 
stakeholder groups as a result of the former 
naming structure.

The brand strategy was developed in-house 
by the agency’s Media and Communications 
unit. The brand identity including logo, colours, 
fonts and general graphic design concepts 
was developed with the assistance of a private 
graphic design company at a cost of $3,080. 

aBove: State Heritage Office Executive Director Graeme Gammie

http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/who-we-are/bairds-building
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The move was also a catalyst for a much-
needed review of our popular publications 
to ensure that they reflect contemporary 
language and new procedures developed over 
the past few years. 

A new website was also developed to provide 
easy access to up-to-date information for 
owners and other stakeholders, and to 
highlight outstanding examples of conservation 
and adaptive reuse of heritage buildings as 
part of the Heritage Council’s statutory role to 
promote heritage.

The website structure was largely developed 
in-house to reduce costs with a private 
company building the site for $26,100. 

The website’s improved functionality will 
reduce the amount of staff time required 
to maintain the site, resulting in improved 
information delivery and an overall reduction in 
ongoing costs.

Collectively, these changes in location, brand 
and supporting infrastructure have brought 
a new personality and energy to the State 
Heritage Office. This will be further embedded 
as a range of new initiatives are rolled out 
in the coming financial year as the Office 
continues its ongoing development as a 
proactive and contemporary branch of State 
Government that assists owners, stakeholders 
and the community to care for, manage and 
celebrate our heritage places.

The achievements of the State Heritage 
Office through the year are due to the efforts 
and commitment of the Office staff with the 
support of the Heritage Council. I would like 
to thank everyone for their dedication and 
support in what has been a challenging but 
highly productive 12 months.

Graeme Gammie 
Executive Director 
State Heritage Office
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1.5 sigNiFiCANT issUEs imPACTiNg THE AgENCy

Assistance for owners
Private owners are increasingly looking to 
the Heritage Council for assistance with the 
conservation of their State Registered heritage 
properties.

Last financial year, the total amount of grant 
assistance requested from the Heritage Grants 
Program was nearly six times the amount 
available for allocation. To address this issue 
and to increase the overall heritage outcome 
achieved through the program, the Heritage 
Grants Program’s criteria was changed this 
financial year, requiring private owners to 
match funds to grants. 

The change in direction clearly signals that 
the grants program is intended to assist 
owners to meet the extra costs incurred in 
specialist conservation work required due to 
the recognised heritage status and that the 
grants program is not intended to replace 
the owner’s responsibility to care for and 
maintain their property. The 50/50 contribution 
brings the Heritage Grants Program in line 
with other government grant programs in WA 
and elsewhere in Australia. It is recognised 
that there are cases of genuine hardship, 
and the policy allows for applicants that can 
demonstrate extenuating circumstances to 
apply for a lower contribution. 

The program also placed an emphasis on 
projects that demonstrate planning for the 
future and that owners have insurance cover. 

As a consequence, 20 projects were funded 
this year, sharing in a total of nearly $1million, 
and resulting in the delivery of more than 
$2million in conservation works to State 
Registered properties.

In addition, the Heritage Minister announced in 
May that the Heritage Grants Program would 
be increased by 25 per cent, with an additional 
$1.046million allocated over four years. This 
is the first increase in the program since its 
inception in 1996/97 and will deliver more than 
$10million in conservation works to privately 
owned State Registered places over the next 
four years. 

Assessment and Registration
The assessment and registration of heritage 
places is becoming more complex, particularly 
when assessment or registration coincides 
with development. This is coupled with 
an operating environment characterised 
by a diversity of stakeholder and broader 
community opinion, expectations and 
aspirations.

Last year, the State Heritage Office began a 
comprehensive review of the State Register of 
Heritage Places to examine the assessment 
processes and to develop a more strategic 
and contemporary approach to assessments. 
Several changes have been made in response 
to this review.

Heritage assessment work is now principally 
being undertaken by the State Heritage 
Office’s Assessment and Registration Branch 
rather than through private contractors. Work 
is organised on a case-worker basis. This 
allows an officer to oversee the assessment 
right from the time the work is scoped out 
through to the time the place is permanently 
registered. The new process has created 
significant efficiencies in terms of site 
access, stakeholder liaison and compiling 
and amending assessment documentation. 
Contracting costs have been reduced and 
those contracts that are issued can be better 
managed.

Most importantly, the new process also 
enables officers to form relationships with 
owners and begin to work through any issues 
or concerns they may have right from the start. 
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Development Referrals 
The number of development referrals received 
and determined remains at a very high 
level. The complexity of referrals has also 
increased in response to population growth, 
urban expansion and inner city renewal 
projects. This requires more State Heritage 
Office staff time for the development referral 
assessment process, and more referrals to 
the Development Committee and/or Heritage 
Council for determination.

In March 2012, new regulations came into effect 
that resulted in owners of State Registered 
places no longer being required by law to seek 
Heritage Council advice on maintenance and 
minor works to their properties.

This provides much needed certainty to 
owners and local governments by detailing the 
types of maintenance and minor work that no 
longer require Heritage Council advice. It will 
also allow owners to maintain their properties 
without unnecessary paperwork and delay. 

This initiative allows the Heritage Council and 
the State Heritage Office to focus resources on 
more complex development referrals. 

The new regulations have already had an 
impact with fewer development referrals 
received. 

The publication, Guide to Developing Heritage 
Places, was also reviewed and re-written in 
plain English to outline the type of work that 
needs to be referred and what is regarded 
as maintenance and minor works. The new 
website also provides more information to 
owners about the development process, 
the types of work needing referral and case 
studies of properties that have been adapted 
or changed to suit contemporary living.

New information sheets and briefs were 
produced for Conservation Management Plans 
and Conservation Management Strategies.

Planning for growth
The State Government has continued the 
strategic planning process that is being led 
by the framework of ‘Directions 2031 and 
beyond’. This body of work recognises that 
population growth in Western Australia will 
continue and that urban planning must be 
ready to accommodate a significantly higher 
population.

While the majority of population growth 
is likely to be experienced in the Perth 
metropolitan area, the State has nominated 
nine ‘SuperTowns’ around regional WA, with 
the intention of investing in sustainable growth 
in these areas. Each of the local governments 
involved were invited to identify priority projects 
and the first round of funding has been 
allocated.

Programs such as SuperTowns can provide 
the stimulus for reactivating and regenerating 
heritage places, as is happening in the Shires 
of Manjimup and Katanning. However any 
concentration of development activity has the 
potential to put pressure on the conservation 
of local heritage so the State Heritage Office 
is working with local governments to ensure 
that the community’s heritage places are 
considered as part of the future growth plan.

http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/docs/conservation-and-development/guide-to-developing-heritage-places.pdf?sfvrsn=8
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/docs/conservation-and-development/guide-to-developing-heritage-places.pdf?sfvrsn=8


sigNiFiCANT issUEs imPACTiNg THE AgENCy CONTiNUEd

 h e r i t a g e  c o u n c i l  o f  W e s t e r n  a u s t r a l i a    1 3    a n n u a l  r e p o r t  2 0 1 1 / 1 2

Legislative change in the building 
industry
The conservation and adaptation of heritage 
places always creates challenges, particularly 
in the design and implementation of solutions 
for new uses. Current building standards and 
expectations for universal access are often 
at odds with the reality presented by historic 
fabric. 

When the Building Act and its associated 
Regulations came into effect in April 2012, 
there were concerns about how the new 
process introduced for building approvals 
would impact on the adaptation of heritage 
places for new uses.

The market needs to adjust to new standards 
and be innovative in finding alternative 
solutions to satisfy the codes, and to engage 
with the State Heritage Office and the Building 
Commission at an early stage in the project 
to help find ways to adapt heritage buildings 
in ways that balance contemporary standards 
with the maintenance of significant heritage 
fabric.

The State Heritage Office will continue to work 
with stakeholders such as local government, 
industry professionals and the Building 
Commission to ensure that the safeguards 
present in the Heritage Act can be applied 
without undue restrictions in the permit 
approvals process. 

Isolation and skills shortage
Approximately two thirds of Western Australia’s 
heritage places are in regional, often remote 
areas. The geography of the State impacts 
on the availability of services and supplies, 
and inflates costs. This is compounded by a 
serious shortage of professional and trades 
people with skills and knowledge in heritage 
conservation. This presents difficulties for 
private property owners as well as State and 
local governments.

Innovative delivery methods are required 
to counteract the availability of supplies 
and services, cost inflation and limited 
opportunities for personal contact.

With local governments being responsible for 
a large share of statutory heritage planning 
and protection in WA, the Heritage Council 
and the State Heritage Office have increased 
the number of visits to regional areas to assist 
local governments with advice on planning and 
heritage issues. 

A new online searchable database is planned 
for 2012/13 which will identify heritage 
professionals working in regional areas. The 
database will be expanded in the second 
half of the year to include tradespeople 
and craftsmen who specialise in heritage 
properties. This database will replace the 
current Directory of Consultants.

Increased funding to the Heritage Grants 
Program will also assist more owners of State 
Registered places with the conservation of 
their properties.
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2.0 OPERATiONAL sTRUCTURE

2.1  HERiTAgE COUNCiL OF 
wEsTERN AUsTRALiA 

The Heritage Council of Western Australia is 
the State Government’s advisory and statutory 
body on heritage. 

The Council’s primary roles are to set strategic 
direction; make recommendations to the 
Minister on the proposed registration of 
places; review and provide advice on major 
development applications; and promote the 
conservation of Western Australia’s heritage. 
Members are appointed by the Governor of 
Western Australia on the recommendation of 
the Minister for Heritage. 

2.2 sTATE HERiTAgE OFFiCE 
The State Heritage Office is a branch of 
the State Government that supports the 
Heritage Council and the Minister for Heritage 
to identify, celebrate and promote the 
conservation and sensitive development of 
cultural heritage places in WA.

The State Heritage Office carries out most of 
the Heritage Council’s day-to-day operations, 
projects and service delivery. Delegation of 
responsibilities from the Council to the Office 
occurs within the framework of a formal 
delegation policy.

The State Heritage Office staff are employed 
by the Department of Local Government, 
which provides support services in human 
resources, finance and information technology.

Responsible Minister

Hon GM (John) Castrilli MLA, Minister  
for Local Government; Heritage; Citizenship  
and Multicultural Interests

Enabling Legislation

Heritage of Western Australia Act 1990

Legislation Administered

Heritage of Western Australia Act 1990

Employing Authority

Department of Local Government (DLG)

2.3  HERiTAgE COUNCiL 
mEmbERs

The Heritage Council comprises nine members 
and includes a chairperson, four community 
representatives, and a representative 
each from the heritage professions, local 
government, owners’ interest groups and a 
nominee of the National Trust of Australia (WA).

Councillors
Mrs Marion Fulker (Chair), Mr Philip Griffiths, 
Mr Lloyd Clark, Mrs Anne Arnold, Ms Nerida  
Moredoundt, Mayor Henry Zelones, Mr 
Noel Robertson, Mr David Heaver, Dr John 
Stephens.

Mrs Marion Fulker – Chair 
(appointed 2009) 

Marion was appointed 
Chair of the Heritage 
Council in 2009 after 
serving four years on the 
board. 

Marion is the CEO of 
the Committee for Perth, a future focused 
organisation that is committed to creating 
a more cohesive, dynamic and attractive 
metropolitan area. In ‘A Cultural Compact for 
Perth, the 10 year challenge’, which was borne 
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out of large scale community consultation 
undertaken by the Committee for Perth, a key 
recommendation is to link history and heritage 
in order to bring forward people’s stories and 
cultures as a way of appreciating our rich 
cultural heritage.

Marion’s work as Chair of the Heritage Council 
aims to protect and enhance these features in 
a way that can be important to the Perth of the 
future. She believes that registration of places 
of State significance can serve to enhance our 
sense of place.

Marion has a Masters in Business 
Administration and was the Executive Director 
of the Urban Development Institute of Australia 
(WA) from 2002 to 2006.

Through her role on the Council, she is a 
member of the Western Australian Planning 
Commission’s Central Perth Planning 
Committee.

Mrs Anne Arnold - 
Deputy Chair; Owner’s 
Interests Representative 
(appointed 2008); and 
Chair of the Development 
Committee

Anne is the former Chief 
Executive of the Real 

Estate Institute of Western Australia. She 
has been involved in property, planning, real 
estate and housing throughout her 25-year 
career including Executive Director of UDIA 
WA (1989-1998), Deputy Chair of the Western 
Australian Planning Commission (1996-1999) 
and as the inaugural Director of the Office of 
Housing Policy (1999-2002).

She has had an ongoing interest in heritage 
and its impact on property owners since she 
was involved in co-ordinating development 
industry comment on the Heritage Bill in the 
early nineties. She believes that the Heritage 
Council should be focused on educating 
and convincing owners of the benefits of a 
heritage listing and working with them to assist 
in optimising the commercial viability of any 
development of their properties.

Mr Philip Griffiths - 
Heritage Professionals 
Representative 
(appointed 1992); and 
Chair of the Register 
Committee.

Award winning architect 
Philip is director of 

Griffiths Architects and a member of Australia 
ICOMOS, DOCOMOMO, National Trust of 
Australia (WA) and Fremantle Prison Trust.

One of WA’s most experienced and respected 
architects, Philip has been involved with 
some of WA’s most iconic historic buildings 
including Fremantle Prison, Episcopal Palace, 
Government House, Central Government 
Buildings, and Parliament House. Prior to this, 
he was based in the United Kingdom where 
he worked on various heritage properties in 
London, Hereford, Canterbury, Bristol and 
Bolton.

He provides valuable knowledge and expertise 
on the conservation and adaption of heritage 
places, and enjoys passing on the passion and 
knowledge of heritage to emerging architects 
and building owners who have, or are, thinking 
of acquiring heritage places.
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Mayor Henry Zelones JP 
– Local Government 
Representative 
(appointed 2008)

Henry is Mayor of the 
City of Armadale and 
is currently WALGA’s 
nominated representative 

to the Heritage Council. 

Henry was first introduced to hands on 
heritage involvement in the early 1990’s 
by chairing the City of Armadale Municipal 
Heritage Inventory committee. 

While his task as a Councillor is to consider 
heritage matters of State significance, he has 
been associated with the establishment of 
the Heritage Council’s Declaration of Interest 
Policy, which guides Councillors and staff 
ensuring full transparency and accountability 
when making recommendations for listing or 
approving development applications.

Mr David Heaver – 
Community 
Representative 
(appointed 2009)

One of WA’s leading 
regional heritage 
architects, David is the 
Director of H+H Architects 

in Albany. He has worked extensively on 
heritage buildings in metropolitan and regional 
WA including Fremantle Prison, Old Farm 
Strawberry Hill, Albany Court House Precinct, 
and Breaksea Island Houses. 

David has been involved in a range of 
community and cultural development 
committees in Albany and has had a particular 
interest in the conservation and interpretation of 
the many heritage buildings and precincts in the 
Albany Region. He was awarded the Heritage 
Award in 2006 for outstanding commitment 
to heritage conservation and interpretation in 
Western Australia by an individual.

David’s experience with institutional, 
commercial and heritage projects, together 
with his understanding of issues from a 
regional perspective, provides an added 
strength to the Heritage Council.

Mr Lloyd Clark – 
Community 
Representative 
(appointed 2010)

Lloyd is the founder 
and Managing Director 
of Match group of 
companies. Match has 

undertaken a number of redevelopments of 
heritage properties including the WD & HO 
Wills Building known as “Home” warehouse 
apartments which won the 2009 National 
Property Council of Australia Award for 
adaptive re-use.

In 2009, Match won the Heritage Council of 
WA’s Gerry Gauntlett Award for adaptive re-use.

Lloyd’s practical experience in re-development 
and adaptive re-use of heritage properties 
assists in his role as a member of the 
Development Committee. Lloyd believes that 
the Heritage Council and developers need to 
work in partnership to ensure the preservation 
and conservation of heritage properties for 
future generations to enjoy.
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Ms Nerida Moredoundt 
– Community 
Representative 
(appointed 2011)

Nerida is the Principal 
Heritage Architect with 
The Planning Group 
WA and brings a depth 

of experience in heritage planning to the 
important advisory role the Heritage Council 
plays in the identification and management of 
heritage places in the State. 

She has a particular interest in working with 
owners, local government, State government 
agencies, community organisations and 
heritage professionals to find practical 
outcomes for heritage places. She is highly 
regarded for her work in the assessment of 
potential impact of development in heritage 
areas and master planning for complex 
heritage sites. Nerida is also a member of 
Australia ICOMOS.

Mr Noel Robertson – 
Community 
Representative 
(appointed 2011) 

Noel has had more than 20 
years experience in town 
planning, specialising in 

heritage. He has worked at the City of Perth for 
more than 15 years in the Strategy Unit.  
In his current role as the City’s Principal 
Heritage Officer, he has been instrumental 
in developing and implementing the City of 
Perth Heritage Program, which is a State and 
national leader in what it delivers. Prior to this 
appointment, Noel worked for the City of Swan 
in the Town Planning Department. 

Noel is driven by what the potential of heritage 
can deliver to all sections of our society and is 
committed to delivering this in a holistic and 
inclusive manner.

Professor John Stephens 
– National Trust of 
Australia (WA) nominee 
(appointed 2011) 

John is currently a 
teacher and researcher 
in the School of Built 
Environment at Curtin 

University. His area of expertise includes 
architectural history, heritage and war 
commemoration.

Originally a practicing architect, John is a 
member of the Australia Asia Pacific Institute 
and an active volunteer in State heritage 
matters. He is a Councillor of the National Trust 
and member of ICOMOS.

Heritage Council Committees 
Register Committee

The Register Committee determines the 
priority of assessment for all places nominated 
to the State Register; reviews assessment 
documentation of places under consideration; 
and make recommendations to the Minister for 
Heritage of places deemed to have State-level 
cultural heritage significance. 

Members:

Mr Philip Griffiths (Chair), Cr Henry Zelones,  
Ms Nerida Moredount, Prof John Stephens

Co-opted members: Mrs Fiona Bush,  
Ms Aileen Walsh

Development Committee

Proposed major changes to places listed in 
the State Register require formal consideration 
and advice by the Heritage Council. The 
Development Committee provides this advice 
for large-scale or complex projects, except 
when a project is particularly sensitive in which 
case it is dealt with by the full Council.

Members:

Mrs Anne Arnold (Chair), Mr Noel Robertson, 
Mr Lloyd Clark, Mr David Heaver. 

Co-opted members: Mr Tony Ednie-Brown, 
Ms Jennifer Marschner, Mr Gerald Major.
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Employing authority
Department of Local Government  

Director General  
Ms Jennifer Mathews

Heritage CounCil  
of Western australia

Chair Mrs Marion Fulker

State Heritage office
Executive Director Mr Graeme Gammie

Minister for Heritage
Hon GM (John) Castrilli MLA

Information Technology

Legal

Finance

LocaL Government 
ServiceS

Manager Mr Callum Crofton

Develops the role of local 
government and State 

government agencies in the 
conservation and management 

of heritage places.

Strategic Policy  
and ProjectS

Manager Mr Mike Betham

Manage strategy-
development, policy  

and projects.

Assessment And 
RegistRAtion 

Manager Dr Penny O’Connor

Manages the assessment 
and registration of places 
for inclusion on the State 

Register of Heritage Places.

Development anD 
incentives

Manager Dr Adelyn Siew

Assessment of development 
referrals for registered places 
and the provision of advice on 

other heritage matters.

Grants 

Business services 
Manager Mrs Paula Nelson

Provides essential services 
and support for the 

State Heritage Office and 
ensures compliance with 

accountability and statutory 
reporting responsibilities.

Heritage Tourism

Records

Marketing

Customer Service

Regional Heritage  
Advisory Service

Library

Media and Communications

Administration

2.4 ORgANisATiONAL CHART 
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Objectives Strategies 2011/12 Government goal supported

To comprehensively 
identify and chronicle 
the places that represent 
the story of Western 
Australia’s history and 
development.

 ■ Progressing the State Register of Heritage Places by maintaining well 
understood thresholds that enjoy a high level of public confidence and 
support certainty in forward planning.

 ■ Implement best practice and complete transparency in all aspects of 
the process of entering places in the State Register of Heritage Places.

 ■ Promote consistency and high standards in local governments’ 
heritage identification and listing practices.

Outcomes Based Service Delivery
Greater focus on achieving results 
in key service delivery areas for the 
benefit of all Western Australians.

Stronger Focus on the Regions
Greater focus on service delivery, 
infrastructure investment and 
economic development to improve 
the overall quality of life in remote 
and regional areas.

Social and Environmental 
Responsibility
Ensuring that economic activity 
is managed in a socially and 
environmentally responsible 
manner for the long term benefit  
of the State.

To promote sound 
conservation, successful 
adaptation and 
harmonious development 
of Western Australia’s 
heritage places.

 ■ Provide advice on development proposals under a policy framework 
that is informed, reasonable, timely, consistent, transparent and clear.

 ■ Increase private and public sector investment in heritage conservation 
by providing or facilitating grants, incentives and advice.

 ■ Work with key government agencies to ensure that heritage 
conservation is actively supported in metropolitan and regional 
planning, and asset ownership.

 ■ Build capacity in heritage planning and management in local 
governments, and in State Government agencies.

 ■ Develop awareness of opportunities and mechanisms for reviving 
heritage places subject to disuse and neglect.

To increase appreciation 
of the importance of 
heritage places to 
Western Australia’s 
identity and quality of life.

 ■ Promote heritage success stories and engagement with the State’s 
heritage through media, publications, tourism and interpretation.

 ■ Improve the availability of information about the sustainability and 
economic benefits of heritage conservation.

 ■ Promote improved heritage training and education opportunities in 
Western Australia.

3.0 PERFORmANCE mANAgEmENT FRAmEwORk
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4.1 AgENCy PERFORmANCE COmPAREd TO REsOURCE AgREEmENT TARgETs

Financial Targets Target
$’000

Actual
$’000

Variation
$’000

Total cost of services 8,109 7,107 (1,002)
Net cost of services 7,944 6,994 (950)
Total equity 1,069 4,057 2,988
Net increase/(decrease) in cash held (2,156) 757 2,913
Approved full time equivalent (FTE) 30 29.93 (0.07)

Heritage Council Desired Government Outcomes and Key Performance Indicators
Desired Outcome: Conservation of cultural heritage places in Western Australia for the benefit of present and future generations

Key Effectiveness Indicators Target Actual Variation
The extent to which the Register is representative of the State’s Heritage - Completion index 67% 65% (2%)
The extent to which registered places are conserved (not demolished) 100% 100% -

Key Efficiency Indicators
Target

$
Actual

$
Variation

$
Average cost of place assessments 10,259 9,083 (1,176)
Average cost of maintaining the Register 230 217 (13)
Average cost of development referrals 320 457 137
Average cost of grants/incentives administered 1,788 2,537 749

Bracket figures represent reductions from the target figures.

Please see page 85-87 for explanation of variances.

4.0 AgENCy PERFORmANCE – REPORT ON OPERATiONs
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The State Register of Heritage Places is a statutory list of places that represent the story of Western Australia’s history and 
development. Entry in the State Register recognises the value and importance of a place and helps promote its conservation into 
the future.

Heritage places are entered in the State 
Register following a rigorous assessment and 
registration process, which includes extensive 
consultation with owners, local governments 
and other stakeholders.

The assessment considers a range of heritage 
values including the aesthetic, historic, 
scientific and social values of a place, in 
addition to its rarity, representativeness, 
condition, integrity and authenticity.

The State Heritage Office manages this 
assessment and consultation process.

Places that the Heritage Council consider meet 
the criteria for registration are recommended 
to the Minister for Heritage who makes the 
decision if the place will be entered in the State 
Register.

There were 1,338 places entered in the State 
Register as at 30 June 2012.

This year, 20 new places were entered in the 
State Register on an interim basis and 29 
places were permanently registered. 

Highlights include: 
 ■ Permanent registration of Canning 

Bridge, South Perth and Melville.
 ■ Permanent registration of Balcatta 

Senior High School, Balcatta.
 ■ Permanent registration of Leschenault 

Homestead Vittoria, Bunbury.
 ■ Interim registration of Cattle Chosen, 

Busselton.
 ■ Interim registration of Pemberton 

Swimming Pool, Pemberton.

Assessment program
Any member of the community can nominate 
a place to be considered for entry in the State 
Register. This year, 15 places were nominated 
by the community for possible inclusion in the 
State Register and 46 were referred through 
the Government Heritage Property Disposal 
Process. Another 79 places were considered 
from other sources. Of the 140 places that 
had a preliminary review, 34 were identified as 
warranting a full heritage assessment.

4.2 AssEssmENT ANd REgisTRATiON PROgRAm 
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Assessments and Registrations 2008/09 to 2011/12
2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12

Places assessed 41 32 43 32
Places registered (interim) 34 15 16 20
Places registered (permanent) 34 39 14 29
Total Registered as at 30 June 2011 1288a 1304 1,318b 1,338

(a) Seven places were removed from the State Register in 2008/09.

(b) Two places were removed from the State Register in 2010/11.

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12
Assessments from Conservation Plans/Conservation Study 7 13 11 5
Assessments from Government Heritage Property Disposal Process (GHPDP) 9 1 14 5
Assessments undertaken entirely in-house 3 11 5 5
Assessments (whole or partial) commissioned 35 18 18 5
Assessments below threshold 10 4 10 2
Assessments produced as part of the Heritage Council’s involvement with tertiary institutions 2 0 0 1

Amendments to Registration
Four amendments were made to permanently registered places:

Place Name Address Interim Permanent Amended  Action

Albany Forts 7 Forts Rd, Mount Clarence 31/05/96 29/11/96 01/06/12  Curtilage increased
Manning Estate, Hamilton Hill Lot 9000 Glenister Rd, Hamilton Hill 05/06/92 22/06/01 17/01/12  Curtilage increased
Sacred Heart Catholic Group, Highgate 40 Mary St, Highgate 24/11/00 28/08/01 15/05/12  Curtilage increased
Noongal Station Group Noongal Rd, Yalgoo 16/04/92 28/03/02 02/09/11  Curtilage increased
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Places not interim or permanently 
registered
During the year, the Minister declined to interim 
register one State owned place:

Place Name Address Recommended

FESA House Hay Street, Perth 11/04/12

The Minister accepted all recommendations 
to progress places from interim to permanent 
registration.

Historic Precincts
No precincts were added to the State Register 
on an interim or permanent basis.

Legal challenges to registration
There were no legal challenges to registration.

bijOU THEATRE, EsPERANCE (1896, 1900s)
Esperance’s Bijou Theatre, meaning ‘jewel’ in French, is the oldest purpose built theatre still 
operating in WA, and is also the only known 1890s theatre of timber and corrugated iron 
construction that still exists in Australia.
The Esperance Theatre Guild took over the building in 1971, breathing new life into it by 
hosting regular performances. 
With community assistance, major conservation and maintenance works have been 
undertaken over the years, and these efforts have been recognised through its entry in the 
State Register.
Bijou Theatre now uses State registration for publicity and its marketing and promotion of the 
theatre and its theatre tours.
However, when the Guild was asked to comment on the proposal to enter Bijou Theatre in 
the State heritage register in 2009, they did not support the idea.
The Guild was concerned about how entry in the State Register might impact on their use of 
the building, and any future development plans. 
The State Heritage Office actively worked with the Guild to address their concerns, which 
were based on misunderstandings about the effect of registration.
Entry in the State Register is about recognising, celebrating and respecting heritage places, 
and does not mean places cannot be altered or changed to meet contemporary needs and 
uses.
The Shire of Esperance supported 
registration, and Member for Eyre  
Dr Graham Jacobs MLA also 
assisted in ensuring that this gem 
was recognised through interim 
registration on 23 August 2011. 
With the support of the Esperance 
Theatre Guild, Bijou Theatre entered 
the State Register of Heritage Places 
permanently on  
1 May 2012.
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The State Government is the largest single owner of heritage places in Western Australia and sets the standard for observing good 
heritage management and conservation practice. 

The purpose of the Government Heritage 
Property Disposal Process (GHPDP) policy 
is to identify and assess the heritage value 
of State Government property under 
consideration for disposal, and to provide 
relevant protection where appropriate. 

The policy applies to all State Government 
agencies, organisations listed in Schedule 
1 of the Financial Management Act 2006, 
and Government Trading Enterprises. These 
agencies are required to notify the Heritage 
Council if they intend to dispose of a property, 
which is: 

 ■ More than 60 years old
 ■ Listed on an existing heritage list such 

as the local government inventory 
 ■ Displays other evidence of potential 

heritage significance 

The agency is required to notify the Heritage 
Council of the proposed disposal at least four 
months beforehand. Disposal includes the 
demolition, sale, transfer or lease of a property 
outside of the State Government sector (the 
transfer or lease must be for at least 10 years). 

This year, 46 places were referred to the State 
Heritage Office and had a preliminary review 
under GHPDP. However none were identified 
as warranting full assessment for possible 
entry in the State Register. 

Five full heritage assessments were 
undertaken by government agencies as a 
result of previous GHPDP referrals.

To assist government agencies with referrals 
under GHPDP, the State Heritage Office 
developed a Toolkit, which was launched in 
July 2011. Containing a range of information 

and guidance on the process, the Toolkit 
aims to make the process of referring places 
clearer and easier to understand. The Toolkit 
was trialled and refined in conjunction with the 
Department of Housing. 

To promote the Toolkit, the State Heritage 
Office undertook a series of presentations this 
year to government agencies and government 
trading enterprises with the largest 
landholdings in the State: Western Power, 
Watercorp, the Department of Education, 
Landcorp, Main Roads WA, the Public 
Transport Authority, Regional Development 
and Lands, the Western Australia Police, and 
Department of Environment and Conservation. 

Overall the presentations were well attended 
and have resulted in an increased rate of 
awareness and compliance with GHPDP 
requirements.

4.3 gOVERNmENT HERiTAgE PROPERTy disPOsAL PROCEss

http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/state-heritage-register/government-owners/government-heritage-property-disposal-process-(ghpdp)
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/state-heritage-register/government-owners/government-heritage-property-disposal-process-(ghpdp)
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kENsiNgTON HOsPiTAL, sUbiACO (1937)
A former maternity hospital is beginning a new 
chapter in its life as two private residences after 
it was referred through the Government Heritage 
Property Disposal Process.
At the time of its construction in 1937, Kensington 
Maternity Hospital was one of the largest private 
maternity hospitals in the State. It was constructed 
for, owned and operated by women, and 
predominantly provided midwifery services from  
1937 to the 1957.
The building continued its association with women 
by becoming an annex to King Edward Memorial 
Hospital for 20 years and then a centre providing 
services to children and their carers.

In 1981, it was transferred to the then Department 
of Community Welfare and renamed the Brenda 
Cherry Centre, accommodating various organisations 
including the not-for-profit Foster Care Association 
and Jigsaw Adoption.
In 2009, the Department of Child Protection closed 
the facility with a view to selling the property which 
contains two buildings. It was then referred to 
the Heritage Council under the provisions of the 
Government Heritage Property Disposal Process. 
The Department of Community Services 
commissioned a full heritage assessment,  
which was used as a basis to recommend  
its inclusion on the State Register.

In January 2011, Kensington Hospital was entered in 
the State Register on an interim basis with the entry 
made permanent in June 2011.
In April 2012, the property was sold at auction and 
the new owners are planning to adapt the hospital’s 
two buildings into two private residences. The 
interiors of the buildings will be upgraded to meet 
today’s standards whilst substantially retaining the 
original floor layouts. A modern two storey addition  
is planned for the rear of one of the buildings.
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4.4 dEVELOPmENT REFERRALs ANd CONsERVATiON AdViCE

The Heritage Council provides advice to local governments and other decision-making authorities on changes or development to 
State Registered places, prior to works being undertaken. 

Comments can also be sought in relation to 
the development of non-registered places but 
in this case the Heritage Council’s comments 
are not binding.

The Heritage Council has authorised the State 
Heritage Office to deal with the majority of 
development proposals under a delegation 
framework. This year, the State Heritage Office 
dealt with 85% of development referrals.

Major and sensitive developments are 
dealt with by the Heritage Council, as the 
independent appointed board to provide 
strategic direction and decision-making.

The Heritage Council and the State Heritage 
Office encourage sensitive development and 
new compatible uses of heritage places because 
this is the best way of assuring their future.

Development Referrals 
A total of 981 development referrals were 
determined during the year. The number of 
development referrals has seen a decrease of 
11% from 2010/11. This is attributed to the 
effect of new regulations that excluded certain 
minor and maintenance works from requiring 
referrals and a down turn in the building 
industry.

The Heritage Council and the State Heritage 
Office is actively involved in a number of major 
metropolitan projects that will change the 
landscape of the city such as:

 ■ Perth City Link 
 ■ Elizabeth Quay
 ■ Old Treasury Building  

(Central Government Offices)
 ■ Perth Cultural Centre
 ■ Brookfield Place

The Heritage Council and State Heritage 
Office were also involved in several projects in 
regional Western Australia:

 ■ Interpretive Centre at Albany Forts for 
the centenary celebration. 

 ■ Queens Street redevelopment in 
Busselton.

 ■ Conservation and restoration of several 
buildings damaged in the Kalgoorlie-
Boulder earthquake in April 2010.

The State Heritage Office will continue 
updating and reviewing its procedures 
and processes to improve efficiency and 
effectiveness. 

Key strategic projects include: 
 ■ Building a policy framework for 

assessing development referrals to 
assist in consistent decision-making 
and increasing certainty for owners of 
State Registered places.

 ■ Development of various briefs, 
guidelines and templates.

Proposals that may affect a State Registered 
place are referred to the Heritage Council 
under the Heritage of Western Australia 
Act (1990). Section 11 of the Act requires 
a decision making authority to determine 
proposals consistent with Heritage Council 
advice unless there is no prudent and feasible 
alternative. This may result in an approval that 
is inconsistent with Heritage Council advice.  
Two such determinations were made in the 
reporting period:

 ■ The Shire of York resolved to approve the 
demolition of the Grandstand at the York-
Beverley Racecourse, North Road, York.

 ■ The Western Australian Planning 
Commission resolved to approve the 
deconstruction and relocation of the 
Florence Hummerston Kiosk tearooms, 
Esplanade Reserve, Perth.
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Development Referrals 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12 %
Referrals Received 1196 1079 1,169 1008
Referrals Determined 1128 1064 1,098 981 97%
Referrals Determined – Registered Places 857 878 922 723 74%
Referrals Determined – Non-Registered Places 271 186 176 258 26%
Referrals Determined – Metropolitan Area 665 646 587 551 56%
Referrals Determined – Regional Areas 463 418 511 430 44%
Referrals processed under 30 days 914 898 939 851 87%
Referrals processed over 30 days 214 166 159 130 13%
Referrals determined by Development Committee or governing Council 102 147 141 148 15%
Referrals made under Delegated Authority 1026 917 957 833 85%

OLd TREAsURy bUiLdiNg, PERTH (1874-1904)
The site of the State Registered Central Government 
Offices, better known as the Old Treasury Building, 
is being revitalised with the State Heritage Office 
working closely with developers and owners to 
ensure the design proposal will allow its sensitive 
adaptation into a boutique hotel.
The site is one of five State registered heritage 
places in an inner city block and is part of the wider 
Cathedral heritage precinct project that involves 
the construction of a new 35-level tower to house 
the Supreme Court; full refurbishment of the Public 
Trustee building; construction of a new City of Perth 
library; and construction of an underground car park 
to service the entire site.
The once neglected Old Treasury Building will be 
rejuvenated with the reinstatement of its slate roof 
tiles and restoration of its external features. Internally, 
the building will undergo a transformation into retail 
spaces, restaurants and room suites to the standard 

worthy of a six-star hotel. Once complete, all ground 
level doors leading into the Old Treasury Building will 
be open to the public. This will integrate the building 
into the urban fabric of Perth and allow visitors to 
once again enjoy walking through the magnificent 
postal hall and its various spaces on the ground 
floors.
As in most adaptive reuse projects, a delicate 
balance needs to be maintained between the overall 
conservation outcome and the impact on significant 
fabric. In the case of the Old Treasury Building, the 
impact on some significant fabric, such as secondary 
stairs and internal walls, was considered to be 
acceptable as it allowed for new uses and services  
to be brought into the building.
The stories connected to this place are very diverse 
and multi-layered ranging from the foundation story  
of Mrs Dance and the felling of the tree through to  
the original use of the government buildings. 

At the suggestion of the State Heritage Office, the 
developers held a successful workshop that gained 
consensus from stakeholders and community groups 
on the themes for the interpretation of this history, 
which will be incorporated in the new structures.
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4.5 REgULATORy ORdERs ANd AgREEmENTs

Regulatory Orders
No new Stop Work or Conservation Orders 
were issued this year.

Heritage Agreements
The State Heritage Office prepared and 
completed 10 new Heritage Agreements 
pursuant to s. 29 of the Heritage Act,  
for the following places:

Place No� Place Name
16543* 47 Wellington Street, Perth
2596 Trayning Police Quarters- Lot 179, Trayning
5364* Sienna Restaurant, Yallingup
3306 Le Fanu, Cottesloe
175 Masonic Temple, Boulder
1069 Geraldton Club, Geraldton
3480 Old Treasury Building, Perth
19833 Inglewood Police Station & Police Quarters, Inglewood
9173 Kensington Hospital, Subiaco
3273 Midland Railway Workshops - CME Offices, Midland

*Places marked with an asterisk are not entered in the State Register of Heritage Places but are of 
local heritage significance.

There are now 88 Heritage Agreements for 86 places. Some places are affected by more than one 
Heritage Agreement because the place includes two or more separate structures that are each the 
subject of a Heritage Agreement.

In 2010, the State Heritage Office began to provide assistance to local governments in the 
preparation of Heritage Agreements for places of local heritage significance that are not on the 
State Register, as permitted under s. 29(2)(c) of the Heritage Act. The Heritage Council is not a 
party to these agreements. Rather, these agreements are between the local government and the 
owner of the subject place.

The State Heritage Office assisted 
the City of Perth and the owners of a 
Wellington Street residential property 
to complete a Heritage Agreement to 
ensure the long-term conservation of 
the house, which has been identified 
as having local heritage significance 
to the City of Perth. 

With the Heritage Agreement in 
place, the owner was able to take 
advantage of the City’s “Transfer of 
Plot Ratio” policy, which enabled the 
owner to transfer some of the place’s 
unusable development potential 
(known as “plot ratio”) to another 
location in the City, which allowed 
for more intense development at the 
other location.
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Policy Advisories
In 2007, the agency began to issue Policy 
Advisories at the request of owners of 
registered places, or potentially registered 
places, to give assurance that some routine 
maintenance, repair and ordinary use activities 
would not require referral to the Heritage 
Council. 

Policy Advisories are not “exemptions” (which 
are not permitted under the current Heritage 
Act). Instead the Policy Advisories are simply 
statements by the Heritage Council that, 
having considered the potential impact on 
heritage significance that might arise from a 
list of nominated activities, it is satisfied that 
these activities are unlikely to have any adverse 
impact on the heritage character of the place.

In 2011/12, the Heritage Council issued two 
Policy Advisories:

Place 
No�  Place

Owner/
custodian

3346
Langley Park, 
Perth

City of Perth

18483
Lake Richmond, 
Rockingham

City of 
Rockingham

LAkE RiCHmONd, ROCkiNgHAm 
The significance of the picturesque freshwater Lake 
Richmond encompasses 4000 years of history – from 
the formation of our coastline to its importance to 
Indigenous people and European pioneers, and as a 
popular recreation site today.
The Lake is the home to the very rare and critically 
endangered Thrombolites, which grow and survive in the 
calcium rich, freshwater lake. These Thrombolites have 
a unique internal structure which is not known to occur 
anywhere else in the world.
The Lake was also an important site to Aboriginal people 
and early European pioneers, providing important source 
of fresh water, food and shelter, and continues to be 
valued by Western Australians today as a popular site 
for recreational and educational activities.
Although owned by the State Government, the lake 
is vested in the City of Rockingham for care, control 
and management. In 2008, the City commissioned an 
environmental consulting firm to develop a management 
plan to guide its ongoing maintenance and management 
of the place in an ecologically sensitive and sustainable 
manner. 

When the Heritage Council first considered Lake 
Richmond for inclusion in the State Register, the City 
of Rockingham expressed concern that its ongoing 
management of the place (guided by the Management 
Plan and on-going consultation with the Department of 
Environment and Conservation) would be subject to a 
further layer of approvals required under the Heritage 
Act.
After reviewing the Management Plan and determining 
that none of the management activities contemplated by 
the plan were likely to affect the heritage significance of 
the place, the State Heritage Office was able to draw up 
a Policy Advisory that, in effect, exempts from referral to 
the Heritage Council any activity undertaken at the place 
in accordance with the Management Plan. 
The City of Rockingham was thus reassured that entry 
of the place in the Register would not create a new 
administrative burden for the City. The Policy Advisory 
was then finalised, paving the way for entry of the place 
in the State Register.
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Heritage Grants Program

The Heritage Grants Program assists private owners of State Registered heritage places to conserve their properties by offering 
grants of up to $100,000 to undertake conservation works. Funding is also available for Conservation Management Plans.

Since 1997, 604 projects have received 
heritage grants totalling more than $12million 
from the program administered by the Heritage 
Council through the State Heritage Office. 

This year, Heritage Grants Program recipients 
were required to contribute at least 50% of the 
total value of the project. This change in policy 
was aimed at encouraging greater owner 
involvement and commitment to conserving 
their properties while increasing the overall 
investment and heritage outcomes generated 
from State Government funds.

This resulted in 20 projects sharing in 
approximately $1million of grant funding, which 
will deliver more than $2million in conservation 
works to State heritage listed properties 
across WA.

Further details of the grants awarded are listed 
in Appendix III. 

This year, $795,572 in Heritage Grants 
Programs funds, which includes grant 
commitments from previous years, were 
acquitted for projects in progress or 
completed.

There were 32 completed projects including:

 ■ 21 Brockman Street and 11 Kelly 
Street, Pemberton (both 1913): 
$11,968 and $11,700 respectively, 
to assist with re-stumping of the 
residences. Both properties are part of 
the Pemberton Timber Mill Workers’ 
Cottages Precinct which is a large 
collection of cottages and other 
buildings built by the State Saw Mills to 
house employees in the early to mid-
1900. The original buildings feature 
Federation and Inter-War Bungalow 
styles and are framed and clad in Karri 
with iron roofs.

 ■ 18 Kitchener Road, Merredin (1913): 
$19,725 to assist with the replacement 
of roofing and rainwater goods to the 
homestead. This property is part of 
the Railway Housing Precinct where 
worker’s residences were constructed 
as a result of the development of 
branch lines from the Eastern Goldfields 
railway line into the surrounding 
agricultural areas, making Merredin a 
major railway.

 ■ Oldham Residence, Swanbourne 
(1907): $50,000 to assist with the 
replacement of roofing, guttering and 
downpipes. The residence is a rare 
example of a two-storey weather board 
residence designed in the Queen Anne 
style.

4.6 CONsERVATiON AssisTANCE FOR PROPERTy OwNERs

http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/conservation-and-development/grants-incentives/heritage-grants-program
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 ■ Faversham House, York (1850): 
$25,000 to assist with the repairs to 
the walls, joinery and remnant lath and 
plaster ceiling of this grand homestead 
situated high on a hill overlooking the 
centre of York. Faversham House was 
constructed with the assistance of 
convict labour at the commencement 
of the convict era in 1850 and has 
been transformed since that time from 
a humble, single storey structure to a 
grand residence, through subsequent 
additions demonstrating the evolution 
of Australian house design.

 ■ Earlsferry, Bassendean (1902): $43,000 
to assist with the costs of a structural 
engineer’s report, treatment of rising 
damp and repairs to brickwork, walls 
and gable ends at the Earlsferry 
Homestead, one of the few remaining 
grand turn-of-the-century properties 
situated along the Swan River on the 
then outskirts of Perth. Once a private 
residence, Earlsferry now operates as 
a bed and breakfast and has been a 
finalist two years running for the WA 
Heritage Awards.

Conservation Management Plans were 
completed this year for:

 ■ Wollaston House, Albany 
 ■ Belay Farm Group, Walkaway
 ■ Cohn’s Buildings ND Tattersalls Hotel 

(fmr), Kalgoorlie
 ■ Monger’s Trading Post (fmr), York
 ■ Enderslea, Chittering
 ■ Centenary Building, MLC, Claremont

A Conservation Management 
Plan (CMP) is the principal guiding 
document for the conservation and 
management of a heritage place. 
The main objective of the CMP is 
to ensure that decisions about a 
place are carried out with regard 
to its cultural heritage significance. 
The CMP should provide clear and 
justifiable policies and actions for 
the sustainable future of the place.

In May 2012, it was announced that the 
Heritage Grants Program funding would be 
increased by 25 per cent with an additional 
$1.046million allocated over four years. 

The 2012/13 Heritage Grants Program will be 
worth $1.25million, which is the first increase  
in the program since its inception in 1996/97.

ALdgATE, EAsT FREmANTLE (1892)
2011/12 Heritage Grants Program funding has assisted 
in the restoration of rare elaborately hand-painted ceiling 
murals, friezes and stencils that date back to 1895. 
The interior decorative elements inside Aldgate were once 
widespread in grand residences built by wealthy citizens 
at the turn of the 20th Century. 
The $12,623 grant has helped ensure that these now 
rare significant original features will remain as a physical 
reminder of the opulence of the gold boom period.
The Aldgate project highlights the different types of urgent 
conservation works that can be funded through the 
grants program.
Owners Greg and Leonie Wallace said the grant assisted 
them with the cost of hiring a specialist to undertake 
the delicate work of back filling the ceiling cracks and 
restoring the paintings to match the original works of 
scenes of flowers and shipwrecks.
The grant was one of 13 regional and seven metropolitan 
projects that shared in $1million worth of funding through 
the 2011/12 Heritage Grants Program. 
With owners now required to provide matched funding, 
this year’s grants program will deliver more than $2million 
in conservation works to heritage properties throughout 
the State.

http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/conservation-and-development/grants-incentives/heritage-grants-program


CONsERVATiON AssisTANCE FOR PROPERTy OwNERs CONTiNUEd

 h e r i t a g e  c o u n c i l  o f  W e s t e r n  a u s t r a l i a    3 2    a n n u a l  r e p o r t  2 0 1 1 / 1 2

Emergency Conservation Grants 
Program
The Emergency Conservation Grants Program 
provides financial assistance for professional 
and structural advice and for urgent works 
identified by the State Heritage Office that 
fall outside of the Heritage Grants Program 
requirements.

This year, $7,628 in Emergency Conservation 
Grants, which includes grants commitments 
from previous years, were acquitted for 
projects in progress or completed. During the 
year, two new grants were awarded from the 
Emergency Conservation Fund. This included:

 ■ $2,100 to restore newspaper wallpaper 
at Alverstoke in Harvey. The project 
was completed within the year. 

 ■ $4,975 for cataloguing movable 
heritage at Cattle Chosen in Busselton. 
The project is ongoing.

In 2010/11, $4,750 was provided to Fonty’s 
Pool in Manjimup to commission a structural 
report for the apple packaging shed. The 
project was completed this year.

Heritage Loan Subsidy Scheme
The Heritage Loan Subsidy Scheme provides 
eligible owners of heritage listed properties 
with significant savings on the interest payable 
on loans undertaken to perform conservation 
works. The scheme offers a subsidy of four 
per cent on the interest rate of the loan and is 
a joint initiative of the Western Australian Local 
Government Association and the Heritage 
Council.

Owners of places within participating local 
government areas are eligible to apply 
for a loan subsidy if their place is listed in 
a local government inventory, the State 
Register of Heritage Places, Commonwealth 
Government’s Register of the National Estate 
or the National Trust’s List of Classified Places.

No new applications were received from 
property owners during the year. There were 21 
ongoing loans at the end of this financial year.

The scheme is administered by the State 
Heritage Office, on behalf of the Heritage 
Council, and WA Local Government 
Association (WALGA). The Heritage Council 
budgets $35,000 of funding perper annum 
for the scheme. As no invoice was received in 
2011/12, it is envisaged funds will be paid in 
2012/13.

4.7 sTATE gOVERNmENT 
HERiTAgE COmmiTmENTs
The State Heritage Office administers funds 
committed by the State Government for 
heritage works. The funds are independent 
of the Heritage Council’s Heritage Grants 
Program. 

Goldfields Earthquake Restoration 
Fund
Following a magnitude 5.0 earthquake in the 
Kalgoorlie-Boulder area on 20 April 2010, 
Premier Colin Barnett announced $5million 
in funding to assist owners of damaged 
properties with repairs to their heritage listed 
buildings.

At the request of the Premier, the Hon Colin 
Barnett MLA and Minister for Heritage, Hon 
GM (John) Castrilli MLA, the State Heritage 
Office developed an operating framework for 
the Goldfields Earthquake Restoration Fund. 
The funding was offered through four grant 
streams:

 ■ Emergency Relief Grants provided 
owners with assistance with the cost 
of minor immediate repairs to make the 
building safe.

http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/conservation-and-development/grants-incentives/heritage-loan-subsidy-scheme
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/conservation-and-development/grants-incentives/goldfields-(gerf)
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 ■ Earthquake Restoration Grants 
provided assistance to owners to return 
a heritage building to its condition 
prior to the earthquake, where costs 
were not met by an insurer. Owners 
were required to make a substantial 
contribution.

 ■ The Conservation Improvement 
Program allowed for grants of up to 
$250,000 to undertake additional 
works and required a financial 
contribution from the owner.

 ■ The Preferred Work Grant provided 
funding where a heritage architect 
appointed by the Heritage Council 
recommends work to improve the 
heritage outcome.

All funding rounds have now closed for 
expressions of interest. Several projects are 
ongoing and a small number are yet to be 
determined as property owners negotiate 
with insurers or await detailed reports on the 
scope of works required to remedy damage 
sustained. Due to these few projects remaining 
unclear on exact funding required, the total 
cost of repairs remains unknown.

Fifteen projects were completed during this 
year with approximately $665,233 being 
released for these projects and several other 
projects that remain in progress. 

Since its inception, a total of $3,412,367 has 
been allocated, with $2,976,878 in grants to 
owners and $185,489 in professional fees for 
heritage architecture, structural engineering, 
surveyors advice and reporting on damaged 
buildings. $250,000 was allocated over 
two years for the cost of establishing and 
administering the fund.

Details of 2011/12 grant allocations are 
detailed in Appendix IV.

sTAgE LEFT THEATRE, bOULdER (c1900)
The Goldfields earthquake did not shake Stage Left 
Theatre Troupe’s conviction to purchase and adapt an 
historic building, turning it into a purpose-built theatre.
At the time of the earthquake, Stage Left Theatre Troupe 
were negotiating to purchase 61B Burt Street, part of 
the historic 120-year-old original Tattersall’s Hotel.
The not-for-profit theatre company had raised a 
significant sum from corporate and private donors to 
purchase and restore the building.
Then the earthquake hit, causing part of the front 
parapet to collapse and the remaining parapet wall to 
rotate and dislodge from the building. 
The theatre troupe remained undaunted and 
successfully applied for a grant from the Goldfields 
Earthquake Restoration Fund to repair the earthquake 
damage and undertake much-needed conservation 
work to the building.

This grant provided assistance to the highly-valued 
community-based organisation that has worked 
extremely hard to raise the funding required to purchase 
the building and were determined to proceed with their 
plans after the earthquake.
The heritage architect and structural engineer 
engaged by the State Heritage Office in response to 
the earthquake assisted Stage Left Theatre Troupe in 
determining what works were required for both repairs 
and conservation of the place.
These works have provided a solid foundation for the 
Stage Left Theatre Troupe to build on, with future plans 
to refit the interior and create a purpose-built theatre.
The work was completed in October 2011 and Stage 
Left received a visit from Heritage Minister John Castrilli 
as part of a wider tour to view the progress of the 
restoration of the historic Burt Street precinct.
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COmmERCiAL bANk, bOULdER (c1900)
A collaborative effort between State and local authorities 
assured the future for an important piece of Kalgoorlie-
Boulder’s heritage.
The Commercial Bank, located on a prominent corner 
setting within the historic Burt Street Precinct, was at 
risk of being lost after it sustained extensive damage in 
the 2010 Goldfields earthquake.
The privately-owned two-storey Federation Free  
Classic-style building was underinsured, and there was 
a significant difference between the cost of repairs and 
the insurance payout.

The owner applied for assistance through the Goldfields 
Earthquake Restoration Fund in November 2010. He 
later decided he did not wish to undertake the extensive 
repairs which include rebuilding the parapet and 
internal arches, repairing lath and plaster ceilings and 
walls, repairing external rendering and repointing the 
brickwork.
Instead, the owner gifted the building and his insurance 
payout to the City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder in December 
2010. 
Both the City and the State Heritage Office are 
committed to saving this historic building. 

By working collaboratively and pooling resources, 
including funding through the Goldfields Earthquake 
Restoration Fund, the building was rescued and repairs 
and conservation works commenced.
The project is due to be completed in the first quarter 
of 2012/13 and is expected to be used as office 
space. Works remaining involve ceilings, replacement 
of rainwater goods, repairs to door and window 
joinery, chimney restoration, painting, flooring repairs, 
replacement of damaged and missing balustrade 
members and façade tuck-pointing.
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Local Government Services

The objective of the Local Government Services unit is to support the work of local governments in identifying and protecting local 
heritage places, and providing input for broader strategic planning.

Support is given in the form of education and 
workshops, guidelines, online resources and 
submissions on local planning issues. Regional 
local governments are given additional 
assistance through the Regional Heritage 
Advisory Service.

Local governments are integral to the 
management of heritage issues for the 
wider community. They can increase the 
understanding and conservation of local 
heritage through the identification of heritage 
places in municipal inventories, adoption of 
policies and strategies under a local planning 
scheme, and celebration of heritage through 
trails and walks, open days and other 
community activities.

Working alongside the State Heritage Office, 
local government support in heritage matters 
is critical to conserving heritage places so that 
its stories will not be lost.

Heritage in urban planning
Under section 79 of the Planning and 
Development Act, 2005, amendments to local 
planning schemes are referred to the Heritage 
Council for advice. 

The State Heritage Office also makes 
submissions on any urban planning and 
infrastructure proposal that has the potential to 
impact on the State’s heritage places.

This year, the Local Government Services unit 
provided responses and submissions on 128 
urban planning and infrastructure proposals.

Heritage Planning and Management 
Seminar
The seminar is the main training and 
development activity run each year by the 
State Heritage Office. It is targeted towards 
local government and aims to attract both 
officers and elected members.

The 2012 seminar was held in Bridgetown, 
at the heart of the State’s South West.  
The themes of community heritage, historic 
towns and heritage tourism were presented 
with a distinct focus on regional activities. 

About 50 participants from community groups, 
local government, State agencies and private 
practice, attended the seminar, with a majority 
of attendees from the South West region. 

Regional Visits
Maintaining an understanding and awareness 
of heritage issues throughout the State is 
important in informing Heritage Council advice 
and strategic direction. 

Meeting with local governments and their 
communities provides first-hand information, 
and helps to foster positive relationships 
with each of the groups and agencies that 
participate.

A visit to Northam provided an opportunity for a 
workshop on heritage tourism within the Avon 
Valley, which was attended by local government 
representatives from around the region. 

The Heritage Council’s engagement with the 
local community was highlighted in a visit to 
Albany, which included a public lecture by 
the Mayors of Albany and Fremantle, and a 
meeting with historical societies from around 
the region.

4.8 LOCAL gOVERNmENT sERViCEs PROgRAm

http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/importance-of-heritage/local-government
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Bridgetown hosts 2012 Heritage 
Seminar
The Shire of Bridgetown-Greenbushes 
volunteered to host the 2012 Heritage 
Planning and Management Seminar after 
officers attended the 2011 seminar.

Hosting a seminar is a substantial 
commitment for a local government with 
the State Heritage Office reliant on input 
from officers for local knowledge and 
contacts. However it also brings a number 
of benefits to a local government keen to 
build its heritage credentials and assist the 
local economy and community.

The successful 2012 seminar brought 
heritage to the community, through a 
heritage-themed art competition and the 
local repertory group participating in a 
site visit. Delegates were able to provide 
input to an interpretation plan for the 
Bridgetown Railway Precinct, which the 
Shire is progressing as one of its key urban 
planning projects.

With the event held on a Thursday and 
Friday, delegates were encouraged to 
extend their visit and explore more of the 
region thus benefitting the local economy.

Regional Heritage Advisory Service
The Regional Heritage Advisory Service is 
a proactive part of the Heritage Council’s 
support for heritage outcomes in regional 
Western Australia. Heritage Advisers 
have a variety of backgrounds including 
architecture, archaeology and history, and 
all have extensive experience and a sound 
understanding of heritage issues.

A revised approach to regional support 
has led to a specific focus on support 
and development of local governments, 
consistent with the aim of building their 
capacity to manage heritage issues. 
The Service has also, for the first time, 
covered the whole of regional WA. Further 
engagement with remote regional local 
governments will take place in the coming 
year to develop the support role of the 
State Heritage Office.

Below: Map showing the regions covered  
by the Regional Heritage Advisory Service

North Coast

Goldfields 

City of 
Kalgoorlie-Boulder

Mid West 

Northern
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Southern 
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Southern
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http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/education-research-events/education-training-seminars
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/education-research-events/education-training-seminars
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/importance-of-heritage/local-government/regional-heritage-advisory-service


 h e r i t a g e  c o u n c i l  o f  W e s t e r n  a u s t r a l i a    3 7    a n n u a l  r e p o r t  2 0 1 1 / 1 2

4.9 sTRATEgiC PROjECTs ANd LEgisLATiVE CHANgEs

Review of the Heritage of Western 
Australia Act 1990
Work is progressing on a new contemporary 
Heritage Act, which will lead the management 
of our State’s heritage into the future.

The review of the Heritage of Western Australia 
Act 1990 was announced in April 2011 
by Heritage Minister John Castrilli and has 
involved a series of public consultations.

The first phase of the review, which closed in 
June 2011, sought Western Australians’ views 
on the effectiveness of current legislation and 
what a contemporary Heritage Act should look 
like.

All the comments received assisted in the 
development of a Discussion Paper for phase 
two of the review. The Discussion Paper, 
released in September 2011, outlined a series 
of proposals that will form the basis of a new 
Heritage Act. 

The public were invited to make submissions 
or participate in an online survey.

In addition, five workshops, including one in 
Bunbury, were held for heritage owners and 
community groups, heritage professionals, 
State Government heritage property owners, 
and local governments.

The workshops were extremely helpful with 
participants debating some of the more 
challenging issues raised in the Discussion 
Paper, such as repair orders, the process for 
entering a place in the State Register and 
possible changes to municipal inventories.

Feedback received from the phase two 
Discussion Paper has been forwarded to 
the Minister for Heritage and approval will be 
sought for the preparation of a Green Bill. 
Once the Green Bill has been released, there 
will be another opportunity for West Australians 
to provide feedback. 

Legislation will then be drafted that embraces 
contemporary best practice and reflects the 
expectations and aspirations of the Western 
Australian community on how the State’s 
cultural heritage is cared for and administered.

Heritage of Western Australia 
Amendment Regulations 2012
New regulations came into effect on 27 
March 2012 that resulted in owners of State 
Registered places no longer being required 
by law to seek Heritage Council advice 
on maintenance and minor works to their 
properties.

This provides much needed certainty to 
owners and local governments by clarifying the 
types of maintenance and minor work that no 
longer require Heritage Council advice. It will 
also allow owners to maintain their properties 
without unnecessary paperwork and delay.

This initiative allows the Heritage Council and 
the State Heritage Office to focus resources 
on where they are most needed, dealing with 
development referrals that could impact on 
the significant fabric of heritage places, and 
providing advice and guidance on complex 
heritage issues.

Historically, the State Heritage Office and the 
Heritage Council receives between 1,000 to 
1,200 development referrals each year. The 
regulations have already resulted in a decrease 
in the number of development referrals 
received by the Office.

http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/acts-policies/review-of-the-act
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/acts-policies/review-of-the-act
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/acts-policies/heritage-of-western-australia-amendment-regulations-2012
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/acts-policies/heritage-of-western-australia-amendment-regulations-2012
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inHerit opening the doors to heritage
inHerit is a new online database that combines 
local government heritage lists with State 
Registered places, allowing information on 
more than 23,000 cultural heritage places 
to be available 24 hours a day, seven days a 
week.

inHerit was developed following stakeholder 
consultations that highlighted the need for an 
online presence for local government listings 
because most were kept in book form and 
were underutilised and highly inaccessible. 

The real estate industry, in particular, indicated 
that online access to heritage listings was 
important to real estate agents, and it was also 
felt that a combined online database would 
help home owners and buyers understand the 
different heritage listings.

inHerit will enable users to search the 
database and learn about all the heritage 
listings relevant to a particular place, and pin 
point exact location through street view and 
aerial maps.

Built by the State Heritage Office and 
maintained and updated in collaboration with 
local governments, it will support integration 
with local government mapping systems, and 
features security and administration functions 

to protect data so that the information always 
remains consistent and accurate. 

inHerit is due to be launched at a seminar for 
real estate and settlement agents in July 2012.

Benefits:
 ■ One stop online portal for State and 

local heritage listings
 ■ Up-to-date, reliable information on 

heritage places
 ■ Features photographs, spatial mapping 

and street view functions
 ■ Accessible from the internet
 ■ Free to use and view

Work completed in 2010/11:

 ■ Adding a mapping function to the 
system

 ■ Mapping over 13,000 places
 ■ Inputting local heritage-inventory data 

(text and photos), for approximately half 
of the local governments in WA

 ■ Testing and refinement of the system, 
especially in its public-interfacing 
aspects

 ■ Recruitment of the first batch of local 
governments as active data custodians

 ■ Provision of training and help desk 
support for these early adopters

From July 2012, the system is due to become 
fully operational. It is designed to be the 
accepted way of managing and publishing 
heritage listing information in WA for both State 
and local governments.

Specific targets for 2012/13 include:

 ■ Completing the input of local 
government inventory data  
(text and photographs)

 ■ More mapping on a selective basis
 ■ Marketing the system, leading to a 

rapid adoption of the system by local 
governments

 ■ Training and help-desk support for 
users

 ■ Arranging for the State Heritage Office 
to become the supplier of heritage data 
for the State Land Information Platform, 
and Landgate’s Interest Enquiry service

http://inherit.stateheritage.wa.gov.au/public
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4.10 COmmUNiTy ENgAgEmENT ANd HERiTAgE PROmOTiON

Under the Heritage of Western Australia Act 1990, the Heritage Council is responsible for promoting public awareness of our 
cultural heritage.

The State Heritage Office undertakes these 
functions on behalf of the Heritage Council 
through a range of public and media events, 
marketing and publications, and other 
promotional activities. 

Refresh of the brand 
The State Heritage Office developed and 
implemented a refresh of the brand and new 
brand identity to clarify the Heritage Council 
and the State Heritage Office’s services and 
messages within the community, promote a 
deeper understanding of roles and functions of 
each entity, and reduce the confusion between 
the different heritage agencies, groups and 
lists.

It provided an opportunity for a much-needed 
review and update of all printed and online 
publications, incorporating contemporary 
language and outlining new practices and 
procedures.

The main publications included the Overview 
brochure, Guide to Developing Heritage 
Places, the State Register of Heritage Places 
brochure and the Government Heritage 
Property Disposal Process Toolkit.

A new series of conservation case studies 
that reflect contemporary adaptive reuse and 
conservation practices will be launched in July 
2012 as part of the inHerit launch. 

The refresh of the brand was timed to coincide 
with the move to the Bairds Building, which 
produced savings in the communication and 
marketing areas as the two objectives were 
achieved at the same time.

A new website was also launched to provide 
easy access to up-to-date information for 
owners and other stakeholders. The website’s 
improved functionality has allowed the 
State Heritage Office to highlight the variety 
of listings and outstanding examples of 
conservation and adaptive reuse of heritage 
buildings through photo galleries, and engage 
with stakeholders through social media 
sharing. The website structure was developed 
in-house and provides two navigation 
pathways in acknowledgement of the different 
types of stakeholders. One pathway provides 
for four distinct groups of stakeholders, 
such as owners, who are new or occasional 
users of the website, and the other pathway 
is for regular visitors to the website such as 
professionals and consultants.

Other activities
 ■ Produced the bi-annual publication 

Heritage Matters, an important tool 
in communicating with owners of 
State registered places. The summer 
and winter editions were sent to 
more than 2200 subscribers. The 
State Heritage Office will move to an 
e-newsletter format next year in order 
to reduce costs. Heritage Matters will 
be published once a year and include 
articles on new registrations and WA 
Heritage Award winners.

 ■ Continued to develop strong 
relationships with the media and 
delivered a pro-active media program 
that resulted in extensive exposure 
throughout 2011/12. 

 ■ Continued to partner and develop 
relationships with organisations from 
the heritage and cultural heritage 
sector; tourism; local government; 
State Government and redevelopment 
authorities; legal fraternity and the real 
estate industry to raise awareness of 
and to promote heritage.

http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/who-we-are/more-than-a-name-change
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/publications
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/who-we-are/bairds-building
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/conservation-and-development/conservation-principles/heritage-in-action
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Australian Heritage Week 2012
Australian Heritage Week is a national 
celebration of Australia’s unique heritage 
coordinated by the Federal Department of 
Sustainability, Environment, Water, Population 
and Communities. 

The week ran from 13 to 21 April 2012 and 
was an opportunity for Australians to join 
together to celebrate the nation’s shared 
heritage.

The State Heritage Office participated in the 
Open Day at Government House and Grounds 
on Sunday, 15 April - the first time that the 
House and Gardens had been open to coincide 
with Australian Heritage Week. An estimated 
7,200 visitors enjoyed the opportunity to tour 
the House, Ballroom and Gardens. Tours of 
the cellars were conducted by WA Heritage 
Award winners Two Feet & a Heartbeat. The 
State Heritage Office manned a display in the 
Ballroom promoting the work of the Office and 
the Heritage Council, and heritage in general. 
The display proved very popular among the 
many visitors to Government House.

This national initiative also provided a perfect 
platform for the Heritage Council to announce 
the 2012 Western Australian Heritage Award 
winners.

2012 Western Australian Heritage 
Awards 
More than 250 people attended the Western 
Australian Heritage Awards on 17 April, which 
was held at Government House Ballroom in 
the presence of His Excellency Mr Malcolm 
McCusker AC CVO QC Governor of Western 
Australia.

The awards were established in 1992 
to recognise contribution to heritage 
conservation, adaptive reuse, tourism and 
interpretation in Western Australia. They also 
honour individuals and organisations whose 
work has resulted in significant achievements 
in the promotion and conservation of our rich 
cultural heritage.

For the first time in the awards 20 year history, 
the judges awarded the prestigious Judges’ 
Award to Fremantle Prison for its ongoing 
commitment to excellence in the conservation 
and promotion of the World Heritage Listed site.

In addition, outstanding Western Australian 
conservation projects in categories 6, 
7 and 10 were showcased in the Asia-
Pacific region through cooperation between 
the State Heritage Office and the United 
National Educational, Scientific and Cultural 
Organisation (UNESCO).

Penshurst in East Fremantle, the Kalgoorlie 
Miner building, the former Mackays Aerated 
Waters Factory in Perth and the William Street 
Revitalization Project were all shortlisted for 
nomination in UNESCO’s Asia Pacific Awards 
for Cultural Heritage Conservation. 

Heritage Minister John Castrilli was 
impressed with the extremely high standard 
of nominations received and the mix of 
winners that received a WA Heritage Award. 
The awards attracted 71 nominations that 
stretched from Broome to Bremer Bay, all 
bidding to become West Australian heritage 
champions across 11 categories.

The 2012 winners were:

1) Outstanding individual contribution

Winner: Robert Mitchell, Fremantle
High commendation: William “Max” 
Wellstead, Bremer Bay

2) Outstanding professional contribution

Winner: Dr Ken Mulvaney, Dampier
High commendation: Dr Robyn Taylor

3)  Outstanding contribution by a 
community organisation

Winner: Sisters of St John of God 
Heritage Centre, Broome
High commendations: Fremantle History 
Society and Toodyay Historical Society

http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/education-research-events/heritage-awards
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/education-research-events/heritage-awards
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4)  Outstanding contribution by a public/
private organisation

Winner: National Trust of Australia (WA)
High commendation: City of Bunbury

5)  Outstanding heritage practices by a 
local government

Regional winner: Shire of Wiluna
Metropolitan winner: City of Stirling

6) Outstanding residential conservation

Winner: Penshurst, East Fremantle
High commendation: Worker’s Cottage, 
Perth (Brookman & Moir Street Precinct)

7)  Outstanding non-residential 
conservation

Winners: Kalgoorlie Miner Building and 
William Street Revitalisation Project
High commendation: His Majesty’s 
Theatre, Perth 

8)  Outstanding heritage interpretation 
project

Winner: Wellstead Homestead Group, 
Bremer Bay 
High commendation: Busselton Jetty, 
Busselton

9) Outstanding heritage tourism product

Winner: Two Feet & a Heartbeat, Perth

10)  Excellence in adaptive reuse: The Gerry 
Gauntlett Award

Winner: Mackays Aerated Waters Factory, 
Perth
High commendation: Clontarf, Waterford

11)  Outstanding Newcomer: The Professor 
David Dolan Award

Winner: Spacemarket, Perth
High commendation: Kalari Pty Ltd,  
East Rockingham

Judges’ Award – awarded at the discretion of 
the judges to recognise outstanding ongoing 
commitment to heritage

Winner: Fremantle Prison

Download a copy of the Heritage Matters 
magazine to read more about the winners  
of the WA Heritage Awards or go to the 
Awards page to view photo galleries of the 
winning conservation projects.

sisTERs TREAsURE bROOmE HERiTAgE
The stories of the Kimberley’s unique and culturally 
diverse past are being shared and discovered 
through the treasure trove of memories at the Sisters 
of St John of God Heritage Centre in Broome.
The Heritage Centre was described by the 
judges as a shining example of a community-
based organisation delivering a specialised and 
unforgettable heritage experience. 
Nine sisters arrived at the Beagle Bay Mission in 
1907 to minister to Aboriginal women and children 
including teaching, nursing, training and domestic 
duties. A convent and a school were established 
and the Sisters became an important part of the 
diverse communities of Broome, Lombadina, Derby, 
Bidyadanga and the desert community of Balgo 
Hills.
More than 100 years later, the Sisters continue their 
ministry in the region including the important task 
of ‘returning the story to the people’ through the 
Heritage Centre.

aBove: Minister for Heritage the Hon GM (John) Castrilli with 
Sister Patricia Rhatigan

Not only does the Heritage Centre expertly 
showcases the relationships between the Aboriginal, 
Asian and Caucasian people but of all those who 
help create the Kimberley story. 
The Heritage Centre will continue its work with 
engaging exhibitions, development of the ‘Garden  
of Healing’ and the creation of a new database.

http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/docs/heritage-matters-magazine/heritagematters-july2012web.pdf?sfvrsn=0
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/awards-pages/2012-western-australian-heritage-award-winners
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A LAbOUR OF LOVE iN EAsT FREmANTLE 
People thought Tim Brien was mad for buying the derelict Penshurst property 
in East Fremantle (1897). However, a decade-long labour of love has seen the 
historic house transformed into a stunning contemporary home. And now he is the 
envy of the community.
The judges said the transformation is testament to the passion and commitment of 
its owners.
Mr Brien said the experience has been challenging at times but he has no regrets.
Many were actually terrified of the way Penshurst looked for decades and now 
they stand and admire it.
Mr Brien said highlights of the project have included revealing original stonework 
under years of paint, renewing the grand verandah, creating a contemporary 
addition and turning the barren landscape into terraced gardens.
Many people were surprised to see contemporary additions but this is actually  
the best practice because it clearly identifies the old from the new.

FACTORy APARTmENTs A sUsTAiNAbLE sUCCEss
One of Perth’s few remaining light industrial buildings has been transformed into an 
award winning sustainable mixed-use development.
The former Mackays Aerated Waters Factory (1928), also known as Square One, 
was one of a number of locally based soft drink manufacturers that thrived in 
Western Australia in the early 20th century. Today it incorporates 35 apartments, 
an office and retail outlet that preserves, enhances and interprets the industrial 
heritage of the site. 
Daniel Colgan from Colgan Industries, who led the project, said a personal 
highlight of the project was having the opportunity to work so closely and intensely 
with his family and great consultants, including architect Philip McAllister, to realise 
their common vision for the site.
Colgan Industries commitment to adaptive reuse continues with the development 
of the warehouse portion to the rear into 12 apartments, again retaining all facades 
including the incredible street art that now adorns the northern wall on Little Parry 
Street. 
Last year, Colgan Industries won a heritage award for the outstanding rejuvenation 
of a tiny jewel, the Beagle Bay Mission Church in Broome. 
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Ministerial support
The management of heritage properties 
continues to be an important issue within the 
community. The State Heritage Office and 
the Heritage Council play an important role in 
providing advice and information to the State 
Government and the Minister for Heritage.

During the year, the State Heritage Office 
received and completed 138 requests from the 
Minister for Heritage for briefing notes, advice 
on parliamentary questions, and draft replies to 
correspondence.

Heritage Tourism
The State Heritage Office continued to 

promote heritage tourism as outlined in the 
Heritage Tourism Strategy (2006). 

The Office aimed to raise the profile of 
heritage tourism as a viable niche market and, 
through visitations, to promote the ongoing 
conservation of WA’s built heritage.

During 2011/2012 partnerships were further 
developed with Museums Australia (WA), 
Tourism Council WA, the Forum Advocating 
Cultural and Ecotourism (FACET) and Heritage 
Perth to assist in achieving these goals.

Highlights include:
 ■ Continued association and 

collaboration with Museums Australia 
(WA) to present the 2012 Master Class 

Series of Interpretation Workshops: 
exploring avenues for engaging 
potential audiences through the use of 
digital technology.

 ■ Sponsorship of the Tourism Council 
Western Australian Tourism Awards.

 ■ Ongoing inclusion of heritage tourism 
category in the Western Australian 
Heritage Awards, which highlighted 
outstanding heritage tourism products 
in the WA market.

 ■ Participation in Heritage Perth Heritage 
Days through the presentation of the 
“Unlocking the History of Your Home” 
workshop.

Master Class Series
The State Heritage Office continued its support 
of the museum, cultural heritage and heritage 
tourism sector through the 2012 Master Class 
Series of Interpretation Workshops.

The State Heritage Office provided funding 
totalling $15,000 to Museums Australia (WA) to 
plan, implement and execute the Master Class 
series, with the events co-branded to illustrate 
the partnership.

The theme of the 2012 Master Class 
Series was exploring avenues for engaging 

potential audiences through the use of digital 
technology.

Workshop 1: Emma Shearman from Urban 
Screen Productions presented our first 
workshop showing how urban screens can 
be an imaginative and easily accessible tool, 
delivering stories about museum collections 
and community projects.

Workshop 2: Ellen Broad, Executive Officer 
with the Australian Digital Alliance, and 
Copyright Adviser for the Australian Libraries 
Copyright Committee, focused on copyright 

law and the challenges faced in the digital 
environment. 

Workshop 3: Presenter, Andrew Bowman, 
from the State Library Foundation, discussed 
effective social media engagement, 
management strategies and succession 
planning for continued success, exploring 
opportunities provided by the Internet to 
engage with potential audiences. 

The State Heritage Office was delighted to 
once again have this opportunity to work with 
Museums Australia (WA) on this initiative.

http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au/about-us/acts-policies/heritage-tourism-strategy
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5.0 disCLOsUREs ANd LEgAL COmPLiANCE

FiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs

Certification of Financial Statements
The accompanying financial statements of the Heritage Council of Western Australia (Heritage Council) have been prepared in compliance with the 
provisions of the Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present fairly the financial transactions for the financial year 
ending 30 June 2012 and the financial position as at 30 June 2012.

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would render the particulars included in the financial statements misleading or 
inaccurate.

Marion Fulker 
Chair 
Heritage Council of Western Australia

31 August 2012

Anne Arnold 
Deputy Chair 
Heritage Council of Western Australia

31 August 2012

Alan Shaw 
Chief Finance Officer 
Heritage Council of Western Australia

31 August 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
To the Parliament of Western Australia 
 
HERITAGE COUNCIL OF WESTERN AUSTRALIA 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Heritage Council of Western 
Australia. 
 
The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2012, the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash 
Flows for the year then ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information. 
 
Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
The Council is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the preparation and fair 
presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards 
and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and for such internal control as the Council determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with 
Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require compliance with relevant ethical 
requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit be planned and performed to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the Council’s preparation and fair presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and present fairly, in all 
material respects, the financial position of the Heritage Council of Western Australia at  
30 June 2012 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer’s Instructions. 
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Report on Controls 
I have audited the controls exercised by the Heritage Council of Western Australia during the 
year ended 30 June 2012. 
 
Controls exercised by the Heritage Council of Western Australia are those policies and 
procedures established by the Council to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment 
of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in 
accordance with legislative provisions. 
 
Council’s Responsibility for Controls 
The Council is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of internal control to ensure that 
the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of public and 
other property, and the incurring of liabilities are in accordance with the Financial Management 
Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s Instructions, and other relevant written law. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
controls exercised by the Heritage Council of Western Australia based on my audit conducted 
in accordance with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards.  
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of 
controls to ensure that the Council complies with the legislative provisions. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement and include an evaluation of the design and 
implementation of relevant controls. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the controls exercised by the Heritage Council of Western Australia are 
sufficiently adequate to provide reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and 
investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities 
have been in accordance with legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2012. 
 
Report on the Key Performance Indicators 
I have audited the key performance indicators of the Heritage Council of Western Australia for 
the year ended 30 June 2012.  
 
The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and, the key efficiency 
indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and service provision. 
 
Council’s Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators 
The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the key performance 
indicators in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s 
Instructions and for such controls as the Council determines necessary to ensure that the key 
performance indicators fairly represent indicated performance. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the 
key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian 
Auditing and Assurance Standards.  
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key performance 
indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the key performance indicators. In making 
these risk assessments the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Council’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the 
relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators for measuring the extent of 
outcome achievement and service provision. 
 
I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit opinion. 
 
Opinion 
In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Heritage Council of Western Australia are 
relevant and appropriate to assist users to assess the Council’s performance and fairly 
represent indicated performance for the year ended 30 June 2012. 
 
Independence 
In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of the Auditor 
General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, and other relevant ethical 
requirements.  
 
Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial Statements and 
Key Performance Indicators 
This auditor’s report relates to the financial statements and key performance indicators of the 
Heritage Council of Western Australia for the year ended 30 June 2012 included on the 
Council’s website. The Council’s management are responsible for the integrity of the Council’s 
website. I have not been engaged to report on the integrity of the Council’s website. The 
auditor’s report refers only to the financial statements and key performance indicators 
described above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been 
hyperlinked to/from these financial statements or key performance indicators. If users of the 
financial statements and key performance indicators are concerned with the inherent risks 
arising from publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited 
financial statements and key performance indicators to confirm the information contained in this 
website version of the financial statements and key performance indicators. 
 

 
DON CUNNINGHAME 
ASSISTANT AUDITOR GENERAL ASSURANCE SERVICES 
Delegate of the Auditor General for Western Australia 
Perth, Western Australia 
6 September 2012 
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5.2  FiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs  
sTATEmENT OF COmPREHENsiVE iNCOmE

Note 2012 2011
$ $

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 4 2,595,535 2,410,726
Services and supplies 5 1,625,288 1,679,282
Accommodation expenses 6 252,434 115,495
Grants and subsidies - Grant recipients 7 2,135,838 2,435,313
Grants and subsidies - Other 8 198,656 164,259
Loss on disposal of non-current assets 9 2,862 -
Depreciation expense 10 4,193 16,511
Resources received free of charge 15 232,053 55,217
Other expenses 11 59,983 65,585
Total cost of services 7,106,842 6,942,388

Income
Revenue
User charges and fees 12 12,335 19,945
Provision of services 13 86,400 180,576
Other revenue 14 14,247 21,018
Total Revenue 112,982 221,539
Total income other than income from State Government 112,982 221,539
NET COST OF SERVICES 6,993,860 6,720,849

Income from State Government 15
Service appropriation 5,914,000 5,474,000
Resources received free of charge 232,053 55,217
Total income from State Government 6,146,053 5,529,217
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD 24 (847,807) (1,191,632)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Changes in asset revaluation surplus - -
Gains/(Losses) recognised directly in equity - -
Total other comprehensive income - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD (847,807) (1,191,632)

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note 2012 2011
$ $

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 25  1,782,839 1,073,077
Restricted Cash and cash equivalents 16,25  5,534,125 5,486,887
Receivables 17  149,714 77,109
Amounts receivable for services 18  40,000 40,000
Total Current Assets  7,506,678 6,677,073

Non-Current Assets
Amounts receivable for services 18  225,000 264,000
Office equipment, computers and furniture 19  48,256 5,508
Intangible assets 20  764,318 338,423
Total Non-Current Assets  1,037,574 607,931
TOTAL ASSETS  8,544,252 7,285,004

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables 21  562,331 189,524
Grants payable 22  3,274,284 2,606,879
Provisions 23  482,521 422,163
Total Current Liabilities  4,319,136 3,218,566

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions 23  168,216 151,731
Total Non-Current Liabilities  168,216 151,731
TOTAL LIABILITIES  4,487,352 3,370,297

NET ASSETS  4,056,900 3,914,707

EQUITY 24
Contributed equity  1,379,450 389,450
Accumulated surplus  2,677,450 3,525,257
TOTAL EQUITY  4,056,900 3,914,707

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

sTATEmENT OF FiNANCiAL POsiTiON 
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sTATEmENT OF CHANgEs iN EqUiTy

Note Contributed 
equity

Reserves Accumulated 
Surplus/ 
(deficit)

Total equity

$ $ $ $

Balance at 1 July 2010 24 389,450 - 4,716,889 5,106,339
Changes in accounting policy or correction of prior period errors - - - -
Restated balance at 1 July 2010 389,450 - 4,716,889 5,106,339

Surplus/(Deficit) - - - -
Other Comprehensive Income - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the period - - (1,191,632) (1,191,632)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Capital appropriations - - - -
Other contributions by owners - - - -
Distributions to owners - - - -

Total - - (1,191,632) (1,191,632)
Balance at 30 June 2011 389,450 - 3,525,257 3,914,707

Balance at 1 July 2011 389,450 - 3,525,257 3,914,707
Surplus/(Deficit) - - (847,807) (847,807)
Other Comprehensive Income - - - -

Total comprehensive income for the period - - (847,807) (847,807)
Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners:

Capital appropriations 990,000 - - 990,000
Other contributions by owners - - - -
Distributions to owners - - - -

Total 990,000 - - 990,000
Balance at 30 June 2012 1,379,450 - 2,677,450 4,056,900

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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sTATEmENT OF CAsH FLOws

Note 2012 2011
$ $

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation 5,888,000 5,452,000
Capital appropriation 990,000 -
Holding account drawdowns 65,000 -
Net cash provided by State Government 6,943,000 5,452,000

Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Payments
Employee benefits (2,493,958) (2,308,168)
Services and supplies (1,282,080) (1,753,284)
Accommodation (252,434) (115,495)
Grants and subsidies - Grant Recipients (1,468,433) (1,695,014)
Grants and subsidies - Other (198,656) (164,260)
GST payments on purchases (301,403) (348,942)
GST payments to taxation authority - -
Other payments (59,983) (65,585)

Receipts
Provision of services 86,400 180,576
User charges and fees 12,335 19,945
GST receipts on sales 17,441 32,853
GST receipts from taxation authority 268,029 323,931
Other receipts (37,559) 39,501
Net cash used in operating activities 25 (5,710,301) (5,853,942)
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sTATEmENT OF CAsHFLOws CONTiNUEd 

Note 2012 2011
$ $

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets (49,803) -
Intangible assets - development costs (425,894) (338,423)

Receipts
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets -

Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities (475,697) (338,423)

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 757,002 (740,365)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 6,559,962 7,300,327
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE PERIOD 25 7,316,964 6,559,962

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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NOTEs TO THE FiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs

1. Australian Accounting Standards
general

The Heritage Council’s financial statements for the year ended 
30 June 2012 have been prepared in accordance with Australian 
Accounting Standards. The term ‘Australian Accounting Standards’ 
refers to Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standard Board (AASB).

The Heritage Council has adopted any applicable, new and revised 
Australian Accounting Standards from their operative dates.

early adoption of standards

The Heritage Council cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting 
Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 ‘Application of 
Australian Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements’. 
There has been no early adoption of Australian Accounting 
Standards that have been issued or amended (but not operative) 
by the Heritage Council for the annual reporting period ended 30 
June 2012.

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) General Statement

The Heritage Council is a not-for-profit reporting entity that 
prepares general purpose financial statements in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of 
Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements 
of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several 
of these are modified by the Treasurer’s Instructions to vary 
application, disclosure, format and wording.

The Financial Management Act 2006 and the Treasurer’s 
Instructions impose legislative provisions that govern the 
preparation of financial statements and take precedence over 
Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of 
Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of 
the AASB.

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant 
financial effect upon the reported results, details of that modification 
and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in the notes to the 
financial statements.

(b) Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis 
of accounting using the historical cost convention.

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial 
statements have been consistently applied throughout all periods 
presented unless otherwise stated.

(c) Reporting Entity

The Heritage Council of Western Australia is the reporting entity 
and has no related bodies.

(d) Contributed equity

AASB Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made 
to Wholly-Owned Public Sector Entities’ requires transfers in 
the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a 
restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by the 
Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time 
of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be recognised as 
equity contributions.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Capital appropriations have been designated as contributions by 
owners by Treasurer’s Instruction TI 955 ‘Contributions by Owners 
made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities’ and have been 
credited directly to Contributed Equity.

(e) Income

revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of 
consideration received or receivable. The following specific 
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised 
for the following major business activities as follows:

Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and the disposal of 
other assets when the significant risks and rewards of ownership 
transfer to the purchaser and can be measured reliably.

Provision of services

Revenue is recognised on delivery of the service to the client or by 
reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.

Service Appropriations

Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value 
in the period in which the Heritage Council gains control of 
the appropriated funds. The Heritage Council gains control of 
appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited to the 
bank account or credited to the holding account held at Treasury. 

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions

Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Heritage Council 
obtains control over the assets comprising the contributions, 
usually when cash is received.

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by 
owners are recognised at their fair value. Contributions of services 
are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably determined 
and the services would be purchased if not donated.

Gains

Gains may be realised or unrealised and are usually recognised on 
a net basis. These include gains arising on the disposal of non-
current assets.

(f) Office equipment, computers and furniture

capitalisation/expensing of assets

Items of plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are 
recognised as assets and the cost of utilising assets is expensed 
(depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of plant and equipment 
costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where they form 
part of a group of similar items which are significant in total). 

initial recognition and measurement 

Office equipment, computers and furniture are initially recognised at 
cost.

For items of plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal 
cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Subsequent measurement

All items of plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

depreciation

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically 
depreciated over their estimated useful lives in a manner which 
reflects the consumption of their future economic benefits. 

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis, using rates which 
are reviewed annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of 
depreciable asset are:

Office equipment and computers 5 years

Furniture 5 years

(g) Intangible Assets

capitalisation/expensing of assets

Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and 
internally generated intangible assets costing $50,000 or more are 
capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed (amortised) 
over their useful life. Costs incurred below these thresholds are 
immediately expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets 
acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at 
the date of acquisition.

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring 
the asset to be carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation 
and accumulated impairment losses.

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated 
for the period of the expected benefit (estimated useful life which 
is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis. All intangible assets 
controlled by the authority have a finite useful life and zero residual 
value.

The expected useful lives for the class of intangible asset is:

Development Costs 5 Years

development costs

Development costs incurred for an individual project are carried 
forward when the future economic benefits can reasonably be 
regarded as assured and the total project costs are likely to exceed 
$50,000. Other development costs are expensed as incurred.

(h) Impairment of Assets

Office equipment, computers furniture and intangible assets are 
tested for any indication of impairment at the end of each reporting 
period. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable 
amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than 
the carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is 
written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment loss is 
recognised. As the Heritage Council is a not-for-profit entity, unless 
an asset has been identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and 
depreciated replacement cost.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances 
where an asset’s depreciation is materially understated, where 
the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant 
change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets is reviewed 
annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation 
reflects the level of consumption or expiration of the asset’s future 
economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling 
replacement costs.

(i) Leases

The Heritage Council holds operating leases for motor vehicles and 
office premises. Lease payments are expensed on a straight line 
basis over the lease term as this represents the pattern of benefits 
derived from the leased vehicles. (See note 26 ‘Commitments’).

(j) Financial Instruments 

In addition to cash, the Authority has two categories of financial 
instrument: 

 ■ Receivables; and 
 ■ Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.

Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following 
classes:

 ■ Financial Assets
 ■ Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 ■ Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 ■ Receivables
 ■ Amounts receivable for services

 ■ Financial Liabilities 
 ■ Payables 

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair 
value which normally equates to the transaction cost or the face 
value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised cost using the 
effective interest method.

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the 
transaction cost or the face value because there is no interest rate 
applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as the 
effect of discounting is not material.

(k) Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash 
equivalent (and restricted cash and cash equivalent) assets 
comprise cash on hand and cash at bank.

(l) Accrued Salaries

Accrued salaries (see note 21 ‘Payables’) represent the amount 
due to staff but unpaid at the end of the financial year. Accrued 
salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year end. The 
Heritage Council considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries 
to be equivalent to the net fair value.

(m) Amounts Receivable for Services (Holding Account)

The Heritage Council receives income from the State Government 
partly in cash and partly as an asset (Holding Account receivable). 
The accrued amount appropriated is accessible on the emergence 
of the cash funding requirement to cover items such as leave 
entitlements and asset replacement. The allowance for uncollectible 
amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when there is objective evidence 
that the Authority will not be able to collect the debts.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

(n) Receivables

Receivables are recognised at the original invoice amount less an 
allowance for any uncollectible amounts (i.e. Impairments). The 
collectability of receivables is reviewed on an ongoing basis and 
any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off against the 
allowance account. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value 
as it is due for settlement within 30 days. 

(o) Payables

Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the 
Heritage Council becomes obliged to make future payments as a 
result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying amount is 
equivalent to fair value, as they are generally settled within 30 days.

(p) Grants Payable

Grants payable are recognised as the outstanding grant 
commitments due and payable at each reporting date. Grant funds 
are not released until grant recipient conditions are met. 

(q) Provisions

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are 
recognised where there is a present legal, equitable or constructive 
obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions 
are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.

Provisions - employee expenses

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of 
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period.

Annual Leave

The liability for annual leave expected to be settled within 12 
months after the reporting period is recognised and measured at 
the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liability is 
settled. 

Annual leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 months 
after the reporting period is recognised and measured at the 
present value of amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities 
are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the 
time of settlement.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given 
to expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary 
components such as employer superannuation contributions, 
as well as the experience of employee departures and periods 
of service. The expected future payments are discounted using 
market yields at the end of the reporting period on national 
government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as 
the Heritage Council does not have an unconditional right to defer 
settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting 
period.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Long Service Leave

The liability for long service leave expected to be settled within 12 
months after the reporting period is recognised and measured at 
the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liability is 
settled. 

Long service leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 
months after the end of the reporting period is recognised and 
measured at the present value of amounts expected to be paid 
when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected 
to apply at the time of settlement.

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given 
to expected future wage and salary levels including non-salary 
components such as employer superannuation contributions, 
as well as the experience of employee departures and periods 
of service. The expected future payments are discounted using 
market yields at the end of the reporting period on national 
government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as 
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current 
liabilities as the Heritage Council does not have an unconditional 
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 
the end of the reporting period. Pre-conditional and conditional 
long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities 
because the Heritage Council has an unconditional right to defer 
the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the 
requisite years of service.

Superannuation

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and 
other funds administer public sector superannuation arrangements 
in Western Australian accordance with legislative requirements. 
Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for 
public employees varies according to commencement and 
implementation dates. 

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined 
benefit pension scheme closed to new members since 1987, or the 
Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a defined benefit lump 
sum scheme closed to new members since 1995.

The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of 
employees and whole-of-government reporting. However, it is 
a defined contribution plan for agency purposes because the 
concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the 
Heritage Council to GESB extinguishes the agency’s obligations to 
the related superannuation liability.

The Heritage Council has no liabilities under the Pension or the 
GSS Schemes. The liabilities for the unfunded Pension Scheme 
and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable to members 
who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the 
Treasurer. All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent 
contributions made by the Heritage Council to the GESB. 
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies continued

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 
who were not members of either the Pension Scheme or the 
GSS became non-contributory members of the West State 
Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees commencing 
employment on or after 16 April 2007 became members of the 
GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, existing 
members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees became 
able to choose their preferred superannuation fund. The Heritage 
Council makes concurrent contributions to GESB or other funds 
on behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth 
Government’s Superannuation Guarantee (Administration) Act 
1992. Contributions to these accumulation schemes extinguish the 
Heritage Council’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of 
employees who are not members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension 
and GSS Schemes, and is recouped by the Treasurer for the 
employer’s share.

Provisions - other 

Employment On-Costs

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, 
are not employee benefits and are recognised separately as 
liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate 
has occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of ‘Other 
expenses’ and are not included as part of the Heritage Council’s 
Employee benefits expense’. The related liability is included in 
‘Employment on-costs provision’.

(r) Superannuation Expense

The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income comprises employer contributions paid to the GSS 
(concurrent contributions), WSS, the GESBS, or other 
superannuation fund.

(s) Resources Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Cost

Resources received free of charge or for nominal cost that can be 
reliably measured are recognised as income at fair value. Where the 
resource received represents a service that the Heritage Council 
would otherwise pay for, a corresponding expense is recognised. 
Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial 
Position.

Assets or services received from other State Government agencies 
are separately disclosed under Income from State Government in 
the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

(t) Comparative Figures

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be 
comparable with the figures presented in the current financial year.
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3. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates 
initial application of an australian accounting Standard 

The Heritage Council has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 
2011 that impacted on the Board. 

AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures
This Standard, in conjunction with AASB 2011-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-
Tasman Convergence Project, removes disclosure requirements from other Standards and incorporates them in a single 
Standard to achieve convergence between Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2009-12 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 5, 8, 108, 110, 112, 119, 133, 137, 139, 1023 & 1031 and Int 
2, 4, 16, 1039 & 1052]
This Standard makes editorial amendments to a range of Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations. There is no 
financial impact.

AASB 2010-4 Further Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Project [AASB 1, 7, 
101 & 134 and Int 13]
The amendments to AASB 7 clarify financial instrument disclosures in relation to credit risk. The carrying amount of financial 
assets that would otherwise be past due or impaired whose terms have been renegotiated is no longer required to be 
disclosed. There is no financial impact.

The amendments to AASB 101 clarify the presentation of the Statement of Changes in Equity. The disaggregation of other 
comprehensive income reconciling the carrying amount at the beginning and the end of the period for each component of 
equity can be presented in either the Statement of Changes in Equity or the Notes. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2010-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 101, 107, 112, 118, 119, 121, 132, 133, 134, 137, 
139, 140, 1023 & 1038 and Int 112, 115, 127, 132 & 1042].
This Standard makes editorial amendments to a range of Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations. There is no 
financial impact.
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3. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates  continued

AASB 2010-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures on Transfers of Financial Assets [AASB 1 & 7]
This Standard introduces additional disclosures relating to transfers of financial assets in AASB 7. An entity shall disclose all 
transferred financial assets that are not derecognised and any continuing involvement in a transferred asset, existing at the 
reporting date, irrespective of when the related transfer transaction occurred. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project [AASB 1, 5, 
101, 107, 108, 121, 128, 132 & 134 and Int 2, 112 & 113]
This Standard, in conjunction with AASB 1054, removes disclosure requirements from other Standards and incorporates them 
in a single Standard to achieve convergence between Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards. There is no financial 
impact.

AASB 2011-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Relief from Consolidation, the Equity Method and 
Proportionate Consolidation [AASB 127, 128 & 131]
This Standard extends the relief from consolidation, the equity method and proportionate consolidation by removing the 
requirement for the consolidated financial statements prepared by the ultimate or any intermediate parent entity to be IFRS 
compliant, provided that the parent entity, investor or venturer and the ultimate or intermediate parent entity are not-for-profit 
non-reporting entities that comply with Australian Accounting Standards. There is no financial impact.

voluntary changes in accounting policy
There were no changes in accounting policy that will have an effect on the current or any prior reporting period.

Future impact of australian accounting Standards not yet operative
The Heritage Council cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian 
Accounting Standards and Other Pronouncements. Consequently, the Heritage Council has not applied early any following Australian Accounting 
Standards that have been issued that may impact the Heritage Council. Where applicable, the Board plans to apply these Australian Accounting 
Standards from their application date.
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3. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates  continued

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 1 Jan 2013
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing a number of 
changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was reissued in December 2010. The Heritage Council has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 Jan 2013
This Standard supersedes requirements under AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements and Int 
112 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was issued in August 2011. The Heritage Council has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements 1 Jan 2013
This Standard supersedes AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures, introducing a number of changes to accounting 
treatments.
The Standard was issued in August 2011. The Heritage Council has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 Jan 2013
This Standard supersedes disclosure requirements under AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial 
Statements, AASB 128 Investments in Associates and AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures.
The Standard was issued in August 2011. The Heritage Council has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 Jan 2013
This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring fair value and requires disclosures about fair 
value measurements. There is no financial impact.
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3. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates  continued

AASB 119 Employee Benefits 1 Jan 2013
This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010). As the Heritage Council does not operate a defined benefit 
plan, the impact of the change is limited to measuring annual leave as a long-term employee benefit. The resultant 
discounting of the annual leave benefit has an immaterial impact.

AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements 1 Jan 2013
This Standard supersedes requirements under AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, 
introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
The Standard was issued in August 2011. The Heritage Council has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 Jan 2013
This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates, introducing a number of changes to accounting 
treatments.
The Standard was issued in August 2011. The Heritage Council has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 1053 Application of Tiers of Australian Accounting Standards 1 Jul 2013
This Standard establishes a differential financial reporting framework consisting of two tiers of reporting requirements 
for preparing general purpose financial statements. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2009-11 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 
112, 118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 10 & 12]

1 Jul 2013

[Modified by AASB 2010-7]

AASB 2010-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 1, 
2, 3, 5, 7, 8, 101, 102, 107, 108, 110, 111, 112, 116, 117, 119, 121, 123, 124, 127, 128, 131, 133, 134, 136, 137, 
138, 140, 141, 1050 & 1052 and Int 2, 4, 5, 15, 17, 127, 129 & 1052]

1 Jul 2013

This Standard makes amendments to Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations to introduce reduced 
disclosure requirements for certain types of entities. There is no financial impact.
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3. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates  continued

AASB 2010-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 
101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

1 Jan 2013

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as 
a result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010. The Heritage Council has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of the standard.

AASB 2011-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-Tasman Convergence Project – 
Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 101 & 1054]

1 Jul 2013

This Standard removes disclosure requirements from other Standards and incorporates them in a single Standard to 
achieve convergence between Australian and New Zealand Accounting Standards for reduced disclosure reporting. 
There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-6 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Extending Relief from Consolidation, the Equity Method 
and Proportionate Consolidation – Reduced Disclosure Requirements [AASB 127, 128 & 131]

1 Jul 2013

This Standard extends the relief from consolidation, the equity method and proportionate consolidation by removing 
the requirement for the consolidated financial statements prepared by the ultimate or any intermediate parent entity 
to be IFRS compliant, provided that the parent entity, investor or venturer and the ultimate or intermediate parent 
entity comply with Australian Accounting Standards or Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements 
Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3,5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136,138, 139, 1023 & 1038 
and Int 5, 9, 16 & 17]

1 Jan 2013

This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the issuance of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 
Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. The Heritage Council 
has not yet determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.
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3. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates  continued

AASB 2011-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 
2010-7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138, 139, 140, 141, 
1004, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 & 132]

1 Jan 2013

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance in other Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations as the result of issuing AASB 13 in September 2011. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income 
[AASB 1, 5, 7, 101, 112, 120, 121, 132, 133, 134, 1039 & 1049]

1 Jul 2012

This Standard requires to group items presented in other comprehensive income on the basis of whether they are 
potentially classifiable to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification adjustments). The Heritage Council has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 2011-10 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 119 (September 2011) [AASB 1, 8, 101, 
124, 134, 1049 & 2011-8 and Int 14]

1 Jan 2013

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a result of 
issuing AASB 119 in September 2011. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2011-11 Amendments to AASB 119 (September 2011) arising from Reduced Disclosure Requirements 1 Jul 2013
This Standard gives effect to Australian Accounting Standards – Reduced Disclosure Requirements for AASB 119 
(September 2011). There is no financial impact.

AASB 2012-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Fair Value Measurement - Reduced Disclosure 
Requirements [AASB 3, 7, 13, 140 & 141]

1 Jul 2013

This Standard establishes and amends reduced disclosure requirements for additional and amended disclosures 
arising from AASB 13 and the consequential amendments implemented through AASB 2011-8. There is no financial 
impact.
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2012 2011
$ $

4. Employee benefits 
Salaries and wages (a) 2,120,922 1,934,193
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b) 236,379 203,886
Annual Leave (c) 195,867 198,426
Long Service Leave (c) 42,367 74,221

2,595,535 2,410,726

(a)  Includes the value of the fringe benefit to employees plus the fringe benefits tax component and leave 
entitlements including superannuation contribution component. 

(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State and GESB Super Scheme (contribution paid).
(c) Leave entitlements include a superannuation contribution component.

Employment on-costs, including workers' compensation insurance, are not employee benefits and are recognised 
separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment 
on-costs are included at note 11 'Other expenses - Employment on-costs' and are not included as part of the 
Heritage Council's Employee benefits expense.

The related liability is included in note 23 'Provisions - Employment on-costs'.

5. Services and supplies
General expenses 363,564 188,840
Communication expenses 80,565 29,767
Consumable expenses 75,554 95,276
Service contracts 1,025,731 1,358,041
Minor equipment acquisitions 79,874 7,358

1,625,288 1,679,282

6. Accommodation expenses
Lease rentals 244,110 105,072
Repairs and maintenance 818 1,249
Other property costs 7,506 9,174

252,434 115,495
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2012 2011
$ $

7. Grants and subsidies - Grant Recipients 
Grant Recipients
Heritage Grants Program 1,016,031 700,055
Goldfields Earthquake Restoration Funds 1,111,954 1,845,678
Emergency Conservation Grants Program 7,853 12,100
Conservation Incentive Program (a) - (122,520)

2,135,838 2,435,313

(a) 2011 includes the write back of funding for the unused portion of the Carnarvon One Mile Jetty project.

8. Grants and subsidies - Other 
Cossack 120,000 120,000
Heritage Loan Subsidy Scheme - 35,000
Local government grants 50,000 -
Education and promotion 28,656 4,000
Other - 5,259

198,656 164,259

9. Net loss on disposal of non-current assets
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets
Office equipment and computers - -

Costs of disposals of non-current assets
Write back of net book value 2,862 -
Net loss 2,862 -

10. Depreciation 
Office equipment and computers 2,646 12,040
Furniture 1,547 4,471
Total depreciation 4,193 16,511
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2012 2011
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11. Other expenses
Employment on-costs 44,383 50,558
Auditor General fee 15,600 15,000
Other Expenses - 27

59,983 65,585

12. User charges and fees
Training courses 12,160 16,227
Other 175 3,718

12,335 19,945

13. Provision of services
Consultancy services 86,400 180,576

86,400 180,576

14. Other revenue
Government vehicle scheme 2,398 2,926
Other recoveries and recoups 11,849 18,092

14,247 21,018

15. Income from State Government
Appropriation revenue received during the year:
Service appropriations 5,914,000 5,474,000
Resources received free of charge

- Legal fees 27,570 55,217
- Accommodation - leasing 9,704 -
- Accommodation - fit out depreciation 96,441 -
- Land information 98,338 -

6,146,053 5,529,217
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2012 2011
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16. Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital funds (a) 652,962 -
Goldfields Earthquake Restoration Fund (b) 3,643,037 4,469,145
Heritage Grants Program (c) 1,238,126 1,017,442

5,534,125 5,486,587
(a) Carry over capital works funds from 2012.
(b) Funds restricted for reimbursement of restoration work in relation to the Goldfields earthquake damage of 2010.
(c) Funds restricted for heritage grants awarded to the owners of state listed heritage properties for conservation purposes.

17. Receivables
Current
Receivables 91,985 40,473
Prepayments 528 234
GST receivable 57,201 36,402

149,714 77,109

18. Amounts receivable for services (Holding Account)
Current 40,000 40,000
Non-Current 225,000 264,000

265,000 304,000

Represents the non-cash component of services appropriations. See Note 2(m) 'Amounts Receivable for Services 
(Holding Account)'. It is restricted in that it can only be used for asset replacement or payment of leave liability.
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2012 2011
$ $

19. Office equipment, computers and furniture
Office equipment and computers
At cost 49,803 131,054
Accumulated depreciation (1,547) (131,054)

48,256 -
Furniture
At cost - 59,578
Accumulated depreciation - (54,070)

- 5,508
48,256 5,508

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of office equipment and computers, and furniture at the beginning  
and end of the reporting period are set out below:

Office Equipment 
& Computers Furniture Total

2012
Carrying amount at start of year - 5,508 5,508
Additions 49,803 - 49,803
Movement - - -
Disposals - (2,862) (2,862)
Write Off - - -
Depreciation (1,547) (2,646) (4,193)
Carrying amount at end of year 48,256 - 48,256

2011
Carrying amount at start of year 12,040 9,978 22,018
Additions - - -
Movement - - -
Disposals - - -
Write Off - - -
Depreciation (12,040) (4,470) (16,510)
Carrying amount at end of year - 5,508 5,508
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20. Intangible assets
Work in progress

- inHerit 603,503 338,423
- Nimbus 160,815

Accumulated amortisation - -
764,318 338,423

WIP - inHerit (a) WIP - Nimbus (b) Total 

2012
Reconciliation:
Carrying amount at start of year 338,423 - 338,423
Additions 265,080 160,815 425,895
Movement - - -
Disposals - - -
Write Off - - -
Amortisation - - -
Carrying amount at end of year 603,503 160,815 764,318

2011
Reconciliation:
Carrying amount at start of year - - -
Additions 338,423 - 338,423
Movement - - -
Disposals - - -
Write Off - - -
Amortisation - - -
Carrying amount at end of year 338,423 - 338,423

(a)  inHerit intangible asset relates to the development costs of the Heritage Places Online Database for collecting, storing, analysing,  
and publishing information about heritage places.

(b)  Nimbus intangible asset relates to the development costs of the replacement of the Heritage Council's core business system.  
This Windows application is being designed to replace the legacy "4D" database application "HOBS", that has been in use since the 1990s. 



NOTEs TO THE FiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs CONTiNUEd 

 h e r i t a g e  c o u n c i l  o f  W e s t e r n  a u s t r a l i a    7 1    a n n u a l  r e p o r t  2 0 1 1 / 1 2

HERiTAgE COUNCiL OF wEsTERN AUsTRALiA FOR THE yEAR ENdEd 30 jUNE 2012

2012 2011
$ $

21. Payables
Trade payables 313,962 79,308
Other payables 4,277 30,674
Accrued expenses 182,104 42,287
Accrued salaries 61,988 37,255

562,331 189,524

22. Grants payable
Heritage Grants Program 1,233,151 1,012,692
Goldfields Earthquake Restoration Fund 2,036,158 1,589,437
Emergency Conservation Grants Program 4,975 4,750

3,274,284 2,606,879

23. Provisions
Current
Employee benefits provision
Annual leave (a) 225,043 194,037
Long service leave (b) 222,508 192,816

447,551 386,853
Other provisions
Purchased leave (3,779) (973)
Employment on-costs (b) 38,749 36,283

482,521 422,163
Non-current
Employee benefits provision
Long service leave (b) 155,687 138,475

155,687 138,475
Other provisions
Employment on-costs (b) 12,529 13,256

168,216 151,731
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23. Provisions continued

(a)  Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional right to defer settlement for 
at least 12 months after the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will 
occur as follows:

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 157,366 137,331
More than 12 months after the reporting period 67,677 56,706

225,043 194,037
(b)  Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no unconditional right to defer 

settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of 
the liabilities will occur as follows:

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 75,488 58,837
More than 12 months after the reporting period 302,707 272,454

378,195 331,291
(c)  The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment of employment on-costs 

including workers' compensation insurance. The provision is the present value of expected future payments. 
The associated expense is included as part of 'Other expenses - Other staffing expenses'. (See Note 9). 

Movements in Other provisions, other than employee benefits, is set out below:

Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of year 49,539 49,539
Additional provisions recognised (2,040) -
Carrying amount at end of year 47,499 49,539
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24. Equity
Contributed equity
Balance at start of the period 389,450 389,450
Capital Appropriation 990,000 -
Balance at end of the period 1,379,450 389,450

Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
Balance at start of the year 3,525,257 4,716,889
Result for the period (847,807) (1,191,632)
Balance at end of the year 2,677,450 3,525,257
Total equity 4,056,900 3,914,707

Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Heritage Council. The Government holds the equity 
interest in the Heritage Council on behalf of the community.

25. Notes to the Cash Flow Statement
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is reconciled to the related item in 
the Statement of Financial Position as follows:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents 1,781,839 1,072,077
Restricted Cash and cash equivalents (See note 16) 5,534,125 5,486,887
Petty cash advance 1,000 1,000

7,316,964 6,559,964

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by/(used in) operating activities�



NOTEs TO THE FiNANCiAL sTATEmENTs CONTiNUEd 

 h e r i t a g e  c o u n c i l  o f  W e s t e r n  a u s t r a l i a    7 4    a n n u a l  r e p o r t  2 0 1 1 / 1 2

HERiTAgE COUNCiL OF wEsTERN AUsTRALiA FOR THE yEAR ENdEd 30 jUNE 2012

2012 2011
$ $

25. Notes to the Cash Flow Statement continued

Net cost of services (6,993,860) (6,720,849)

Non-cash items:
Depreciation expense 4,193 16,511
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of computers 2,862 -
Resources received free of charge 232,053 55,217

(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Receivables (51,512) 18,714
Current other assets (294) (234)

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Current payables 348,073 (74,000)
Grants payable 667,405 740,298
Current accrued salaries 24,733 4,616
Current annual leave 31,006 23,336
Current long service leave 29,692 43,278
Current other provisions (340) 32,961
Non-current other provisions 17,213 (13,001)
Non-current long service leave (726.00) 11,369
Superannuation expense - -
Net GST receipts/(payments)
Change in GST receivables/payables (20,799) 7,842

Net cash used in operating activities (5,710,301) (5,853,942)
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26. Commitments
The commitments listed below are inclusive of GST where relevant. 

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments

Commitments for the minimum lease payments in relation to non-cancellable operating leases contracted for at 
the end of the reporting period but not recognised in the financial statements are payable as follows:

Within 1 year 360,126 9,137
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 1,215,882 -
Later than 5 years 636,758 13,910

2,212,766 23,047

Representing:
Accommodation property Lease 2,186,014 -
Leased motor vehicles 26,752 23,047

2,212,766 23,047

Motor vehicles are leased through State Fleet. Leases expire at variable dates until 15 March 2015.  
New leases are arranged as leases expire to maintain the current fleet of two motor vehicles.

The Department of Finance, Building Management and Works has entered into a property lease, on behalf of State Government  
for the purpose of State Heritage Office/Heritage Council accommodation, which is a non-cancellable lease with a 20 year term,  
with rent payable monthly in advance. 
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27. Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Contingent liabilities

- 85,494
- 85,494

The Council had been invoiced by the Department of Housing for the transfer of staff benefits in relation to staff movements  
in 2009 and 2010. The Council disputed the amount of the invoices. During the year the matter was satisfactorily resolved and fully settled.

Contingent assets
The Heritage Council has no contingent assets as at 30 June 2012.

28. Remuneration of Members of the Heritage Council and Senior Officers
Remuneration of Members of the Heritage Council 
The number of Members of the Heritage Council, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the 
following bands are:

2012 2011
Number Number

$1 - $10,000 5 7
$10,001 - $20,000 7 5
$20,001 - $30,000 1 1

13 13

2012 2011
$ $

The total remuneration of the Members of the Heritage Council is: 123,190 108,843
123,190 108,843

The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by the Heritage Council in respect of members of the Heritage Council.

No members of the Heritage Council are members of the Pension Scheme.
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28. Remuneration of Members of the Heritage Council and Senior Officers continued

Remuneration of Senior Officers
The number of Senior Officers other than members of the Heritage Council, whose total of fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary and other 
benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:

2012 
Number

2011 
Number

$100,001 - $110,000 - 1
$110,001 - $120,000 2 4
$120,001 - $130,000 4 -
$130,001 - $140,000 1 -
$170,001 - $180,000 1 -
$180,001 - $190,000 - 1

8 6

2012 2011
$ $

The total remuneration of senior officers is: 1,029,435 760,361
1,029,435 760,361

The superannuation included here represents the superannuation expense incurred by the Heritage Council in 
respect of senior officers other than members of the Heritage Council.

No Senior Officers are members of the Pension Scheme.

29. Remuneration of Auditor
Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for the current financial year is as follows:

Auditing of accounts, financial statements and performance indicators. 15,600 15,000
15,600 15,000
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30. Explanatory statement
Significant variations between estimates and actual results for income and expense are shown below.  
Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10% and $50,000.

(a) Significant variations between estimated and actual result for 2012

2012 2012 Variance 
Estimate Actual Fav/(Unfav)

$ $ $

Expenses
Services and Supplies (a) 1,445,000 1,625,288 (180,288)
Grants and Subsidies (b) 3,301,000 2,135,838 1,165,162
Other expenses (c) 380,000 59,983 320,017
Accommodation expenses (d)  135,000 252,434 (117,434)

Income from State Government
Resources received free of charge (e) 50,000 232,053 (182,053)

(a) Variance largely due to use of temp staff to fill vacant positions and Other expenses.
(b)  Variance due to delays in the completion of approved conservation and restoration works and the subsequent delay in the processing of payments.
(c) Variance due to internal allocation of funds to Supplies and Services.
(d)  Variance due to the increase in accommodation costs in relation to the new office accommodation.
(e)  Variance largely due to contribution by the Department of Finance in relation to the depreciation value of the office fit out for the new office location 

and land information provided by Landgate.
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30. Explanatory statement continued

(b) Significant variances between actual results for 2011 and 2012.

2012 2011 Variance 
Actual Actual Fav/(Unfav)

$ $ $

Expense
Grants and Subsidies (a) 2,135,838 2,435,313 299,475
Accommodation expenses (b) 252,434 115,495 (136,939)

Income from State Government
Resources received free of charge (c) 232,053 55,217 (176,836)

(a) Variance due to delays in the completion of approved conservation and restoration works and the subsequent delay in the processing of payments.
(b) Variance due to the increase in accommodation costs in relation to the new office accommodation.
(c)  Variance largely due to contribution by the Department of Finance in relation to the depreciation value of the office fit out for the new office location 

and land information provided by Landgate.

2012 2011
$ $

31. Supplementary Financial Information
Write off - public property - -
Bad debts written off - 27

- 27

32. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
No information has become apparent since the end of the reporting period which would materially affect the financial statements.
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33. Financial Instruments

(a) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Financial instruments held by the Council are cash and cash 
equivalents, restricted cash, receivables and payables. The Council  
has limited exposure to financial risks. The Board’s overall risk 
management program focuses on managing the risks identified below.

Credit risk
The Heritage Council trades only with recognised, creditworthy third 
parties. The Heritage Council has policies in place to ensure that sales 
of products and services are made to customers with an appropriate 
credit history. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an 
ongoing basis with the result that the Heritage Council's exposure to 
bad debts is minimal. There are no significant concentrations of credit 
risk.

Liquidity risk
The Heritage Council has appropriate procedures to manage cash 
flows including drawdowns of appropriations by monitoring forecast 
cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are available to meet its 
commitments.

Market risk
The Heritage Council does not trade in foreign currency and is not 
materially exposed to other price risks.

Cash flow interest rate risk
The risk is managed by Western Australian Treasury Corporation 
(WATC) through portfolio diversification and variation in maturity dates. 
Otherwise, the Heritage Council is not exposed to interest rate risk 
because cash and cash equivalents are non-interest bearing and 
there are no borrowings.

(b) Categories of financial instruments

In addition to cash, the carrying amounts of each of the following 
categories of financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting 
period are:

2012 2011
$ $

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,782,839 1,073,077
Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents 

5,534,125 5,486,887

Receivables (a) 357,513 344,707

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at 
amortised cost 

3,836,615 2,796,404

(a)  The amount of loans and receivables excludes GST recoverable 
from the ATO (statutory receivable).
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33. Financial Instruments continued

(c) Financial Instrument disclosures
Interest Rate Sensitivity Analysis
The following table represents a summary of the interest rate sensitivity of the Board’s financial assets and liabilities at the end of the reporting period on the 
surplus for the period and equity for a 1% change in interest rates. It is assumed that the change in interest rates is held constant throughout the reporting period.

Carrying 
Amount 

$

-100 Basis Points change +100 Basis Points change
Surplus 

$
Equity 

$
Surplus 

$
Equity 

$

2012
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,782,839 (17,828) (17,828) 17,828 17,828
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,534,125 (55,341) (55,341) 55,341 55,341

Total Increase/(Decrease) (73,169) (73,169) 73,169 73,169

Financial Liabilities
The Board does not have any Financial Liabilities subject to interest rate sensitivity.

Carrying 
Amount 

$

-100 Basis Points change +100 Basis Points change
Profit 

$
Equity 

$
Profit 

$
Equity 

$

2011
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,073,077 (10,731) (10,731) 10,731 10,731
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,486,887 (54,869) (54,869) 54,869 54,869

Total Increase/(Decrease) (65,600) (65,600) 65,600 65,600

Financial Liabilities
The Board does not have any Financial Liabilities subject to interest rate sensitivity.

Fair Values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the statement of financial position, whether they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that 
represent reasonable approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes.
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33. Financial Instruments continued

Credit risk 

The following table discloses the Heritage Council’s maximum exposure to credit risk and the ageing analysis of financial assets. The Heritage Council's 
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below. The table discloses the ageing 
of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior management of the 
Heritage Council.

The Heritage Council does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancement relating to the financial assets it holds.

 Ageing analysis of financial assets (a)

Past due but not impaired 

Carrying 
Amount

Not past 
Due and not 

Impaired
Up to 

1 month
1-3  

Months 
3 months  
to 1 Year

1-5  
Years

More than  
5 Years

Impaired 
Financial 
Assets 

 $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 

Financial Assets
2012
Cash and cash equivalents 1,782,839 1,782,839 - - - - - -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,534,125 5,534,125 - - - - - -
Receivables 92,513 67,825 - 21,519 - 3,169 - -
Amounts receivable for services 265,000 265,000 - - - - - -

7,674,477 7,649,789 - 21,519 - 3,169 - -
2011
Cash and cash equivalents 1,073,077 1,073,077 - - - - - -
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,486,887 5,486,887 - - - - - -
Receivables 40,707 2,554 - 36,053 - 2,100 - -
Amounts receivable for Services 304,000 304,000 - - - - - -

6,904,671 6,866,518 - 36,053 - 2,100 - -

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)
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33. Financial Instruments continued

Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure         
The following table details the contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities. The table includes interest and principal cash flows. An adjustment has been 
made where material.        

Interest rate exposure and maturity anaylsis of financial assets and liabilities (a)

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
Carrying 
Amount

Interest Rate Exposure Maturity date

Fixed 
Interest 

Rate

Variable 
Interest 

Rate

Non 
Interest 
Bearing

Nominal 
Amount

Up to 
1 month

1-3 
Months 

3 months 
to 1 Year

1-5  
Years

More 
than  

5 Years
%  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 

2012
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.00% 1,782,839 - - 1,782,839 1,782,839 - - - - -
Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents

0.00% 5,534,125 - - 5,534,125 5,534,125 - - - - -

Receivables 0.00% 92,513 - - 92,513 92,513 90,913 150 450 1,000 -
Amounts receivable  
for services

0.00% 265,000 - - 265,000 265,000 - - - -

7,674,477 - - 7,674,477 7,674,477 90,913 150 450 1,000 -
Financial Liabilities
Payables 0.00% 562,331 - - 562,331 562,331 562,331 - - - -
Grants payable (b) 0.00% 3,274,284 - - 3,274,284 3,274,284 100,000 174284 1,500,000 1,500,000 -

3,836,615 - - 3,836,615 3,836,615 662,331 174,284 1,500,000 1,500,000 -

(a) The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liability at the end of the reporting period. 
(b)  Grant amounts remaining outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are subject to grant agreements with recipients with an average  

grant period of two years. Grants payments are generally made progressively over the period. 
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33. Financial Instruments continued

Interest rate exposure and maturity anaylsis of financial assets and liabilities (a)

Weighted 
Average 
Effective 
Interest 

Rate 
Carrying 
Amount

Interest Rate Exposure Maturity date

Fixed 
Interest 

Rate

Variable 
Interest 

Rate

Non 
Interest 
Bearing

Nominal 
Amount

Up to 
1 month

1-3 
Months 

3 months 
to 1 Year

1-5  
Years

More 
than  

5 Years
%  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $  $ 

2011
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 0.00% 1,073,077 - - 1,073,077 1,073,077 - - - -
Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents

0.00% 5,486,887 - - 5,486,887 5,486,887 - - - -

Receivables 0.00% 40,707 - - 40,707 40,707 38,457 150 450 1,650 -
Amounts receivable for Services 0.00% 304,000 - - 304,000 304,000 304,000 - - - -

6,904,670 - - 6,904,670 6,904,670 342,457 150 450 1,650 -
Financial Liabilities
Payables 0.00% 189,524 - - 189,524 189,524 189,524 - - - -
Grants payable (b) 0.00% 2,606,879 - - 2,606,879 2,606,879 100,000 206879 1,300,000 1,000,000 -

2,796,403 - - 2,796,403 2,796,403 289,524 206,879 1,300,000 1,000,000 -

(a) The amounts disclosed are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of each class of financial liability at the end of the reporting period. 
(b)  Grant amounts remaining outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are subject to grant agreements with recipients with an average  

grant period of two years. Grants payments are generally made progressively over the period. 
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5.3 kEy PERFORmANCE iNdiCATORs

CERTiFiCATiON OF kEy PERFORmANCE iNdiCATORs

We hereby certify that the performance indicators are based on proper records, are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Heritage 
Council of Western Australia’s performance, and fairly represent the performance of the Heritage Council for the financial year ended 30 June 2012.

Marion Fulker 
Chair 
Heritage Council of Western Australia

31 August 2012

Anne Arnold 
Deputy Chair 
Heritage Council of Western Australia

31 August 2012
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Relationship to Government Goals
The Heritage Council aims to conserve cultural 
heritage places in Western Australia for the 
benefit of present and future generations.

This outcome is aligned to the higher-level 
government goal of protecting and enhancing 
the unique West Australian lifestyle, and 
ensuring the sustainable environmental 
management.

Government Goal
Social and Environmental Responsibility: 
Ensuring that economic activity is managed 
in a socially and environmentally responsible 
manner for the long-term benefit of the State.

Desired Outcome
Conservation of cultural heritage places in 
Western Australia, for the benefit of present 
and future generations.

Service
Cultural heritage conservation services

Establish and maintain a comprehensive 
heritage register; provide conservation advice 
on development referrals and other relevant 
matters; develop the role of public authorities 
in conserving and managing heritage places; 
provide financial assistance and other 
conservation incentives; provide publications, 
seminars and other promotional activities. 

Key Effectiveness Indicators

Key Effectiveness Indicators
2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12
Actual Actual Actual Target Actual Variance Comments

The extent to which the Register is representative of the State’s 
Heritage - Completion index

58% 60% 63% 67% 65% -2% (i)

The extent to which registered places are conserved  
(not demolished)

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% - (ii)

(i) Completion of the register is a long term goal. The Heritage Council’s aim is to progressively bridge the gap between the current 65% and 
100%, although it is acknowledged that the latter figure may never be achieved, given that the State’s heritage is continually evolving. The gap 
between the target and actual results in 2011/12 is largely the result of the increase in places being added to the assessment program being 
higher than the number of places that were registered.

(ii) This information is derived from the Heritage Council’s Referrals database, which records all heritage related development referrals received by 
the Heritage Council. The indicator is relevant to the outcome in demonstrating the extent to which the register provides protection to places 
entered onto it.
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Key Efficiency Indicators

Key Efficiency Indicators

2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2011/12
Actual

$
Actual

$
Actual

$
Target

$
Actual

$
Variance

$
Comments 

Average cost of place assessments 7,352 8,011 6,669 10,259 9,083 (1,176) (iii), (iv)
Average cost of maintaining Heritage Register 243 197 218 230 217 (13)
Average cost of development referrals 458 334 309 320 457 137 (iv)
Average cost of grants/incentives administered 3,412 2,181 2,881 1,788 2,537 749 (v)

(iii) A higher than anticipated number of assessments conducted, combined with more being conducted in-house resulted in lower average costs 
than 2011/12 targets. 

(iv) A lower number of assessments in 2011/12 (32) compared to 43 in 2010/11 led to an increase in the average cost from the previous year.
(v) A lower volume of referrals combined with an increase in complex referrals such as Perth Waterfront and Perth City Link led to higher than 

anticipated average costs.
(vi) A lower volume of higher value grants, including Goldfield Earthquake Restoration Funds, have a higher administrative cost.

miNisTERiAL diRECTiVEs

The State Heritage Office received no Ministerial Directives under s. 6(2) of the Act.

The State Heritage Office received no Ministerial Directives under s. 3(2)(b) of the Act.
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5.4  OTHER FiNANCiAL disCLOsUREs iNCLUdiNg  
CAPiTAL PROjECTs ANd EmPLOyEEs

Pricing Policies of Services Provided
The Heritage Council charged a fee for goods 
and services rendered on a full cost recovery 
basis for the delivery of its annual Heritage 
Management and Planning Seminar. 

30 delegates attended at a charge of $380 
for the two-day event. These fees were 
determined in accordance with Costing and 
Pricing Government Services: Guidelines for 
Use by Agencies in the Western Australian 
Public Sector published by Treasury.

Capital Works
Capital Projects Complete

InHerit, the new online heritage database to  
be launched in July 2012, was completed  
on 30 June 2012 at a cost of $603,503.

Capital Projects Incomplete

The development of a new business system 
commenced in 2011/12. The system is 
expected to cost $1,300,000 with an expected 
completion date of October 2013. Costs 
incurred in relation to this project in 2011/12 
total $160,815.

Employment and Industrial Relations
State Heritage Office staff are employed 
through the employing authority of the 
Department of Local Government (DLG) under 
a Memorandum of Understanding.

State Heritage Office staff are employed under 
the Public Service General Agreement 2011.

Staff Profile

2010/11 2011/12

Full-time permanent 21 19
Full time contract 4 9
Part time measured 
on an FTE basis

1.06 1.93

On secondment 0 0
TOTAL 26�06 29�93

Staff Development
The Heritage Council is committed to the 
training and development of State Heritage 
Office employees. Our strategy is to build a 
highly skilled, professional and fair workforce 
with the ability to adapt to changing business 
technology and the environment.

During the financial year, our employees 
participated in over 135 training activities, 
including:

 ■ Accountable and ethical decision 
making 

 ■ Procurement practices
 ■ Diversity awareness
 ■ Computer skill development
 ■ Safety training
 ■ A variety of job specific training

Workers Compensation
No compensation claims were recorded during 
the financial year.



8 9 h e r i t a g e  c o u n c i l  o f  W e s t e r n  a u s t r a l i a    8 9    a n n u a l  r e p o r t  2 0 1 1 / 1 2

5.5 gOVERNANCE disCLOsUREs

Enabling Legislation
The Heritage of Western Australia 1990 is the 
enabling legislation for the Heritage Council of 
Western Australia.

Contracts with Senior Officers
At the date of reporting, no senior officers, or 
firms of which senior officers are members, 
or entities in which senior officers have 
substantial interests, had any interests in 
existing or proposed contracts with the 
Heritage Council other than normal contracts 
of employment of service.

In addition to activities undertaken to ensure 
compliance with Public Sector Standards and 
Ethical Codes, all new staff attend a one-day 
workshop on Accountable and Ethical Decision 
Making in the Public Sector. The Heritage 
Council also has a Conflict of Interest Policy.

Complaints Handling 
As part of a whole-of-government complaints 
management strategy, the Heritage Council 
has a complaints management system that 
conforms to the relevant Australian Standard. 
In 2011/12, no complaints were received.

Freedom of Information
In 2011/12, the Heritage Council received 
one application under Freedom of Information 
legislation which was completed. A Freedom 
of Information request received in 2010/11 
was also completed.
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5.6 OTHER LEgAL REqUiREmENTs

Expenditure on Advertising, Market 
Research, Polling and Direct Mail
In accordance with s175ZE of the Electoral 
Act 1907, the Heritage Council incurred the 
following expenditure in advertising, market 
research, polling, direct mail and media 
advertising:

 ■ Total advertising expenditure for 
2011/12 was $4,645.47

 ■ This was for advertising new Registrations 
and public consultation opportunities in 
relation to the review of the Heritage Act 
of Western Australian 1990.

 ■ Expenditure was incurred in the 
following areas:

Advertising Agencies Value
Media Advertising 
Organisations

Nil

Market Research 
Organisations

Nil

Polling Organisations Nil
Direct Mail Organisations Nil
DPC – Government Gazette 
Advertisements*

$3,895.00

Adcorp Australia Limited $750.47

*  (Statutory advertising under the Heritage  
of Western Australia Act 1990) 

Disability Access and Inclusion Plan 
Outcomes
The Heritage Council is committed to ensuring 
that people with disabilities are able to access 
services, facilities and information by providing 
them with the same opportunities, rights 
and responsibilities enjoyed by others in the 
community. The Heritage Council aims to 
achieve this by ensuring that:

People with disabilities have the same 
opportunities as other people to access 
services and events by:

 ■ providing opportunities for people with 
disabilities to comment on access to 
services and information provided by 
the Heritage Council;

 ■ ensuring that any events organised are 
accessible to people with disabilities;

 ■ incorporating the objectives of DLG’s 
Disability Access and Inclusion 
Plan (DAIP) into relevant plans and 
strategies; and

 ■ ensuring that our employees, 
contractors, and agents are aware of 
the DAIP. 

People with disabilities have the same 
opportunities as other people to access the 
State Heritage Office and other facilities by 
ensuring:

 ■ new office accommodation, Bairds 
Building, is accessible and includes 
accessible facilities; and 

 ■ signage is clear and easy to understand.

People with disabilities receive information in 
a format that will enable them to access the 
information as readily as other people are able 
to access it by:

 ■ improving community awareness that 
information is available in alternative 
formats upon request;

 ■ ensuring employees’ awareness of 
accessible information needs and how 
to obtain information in other formats; 

 ■ committing to making publications as 
accessible as possible (written in plain 
English, succinct, publicly available); 
and 

 ■ developing a new website that 
meets the latest W3C Web Content 
Accessibility guidelines.
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Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes continued

People with disabilities receive the same level 
and quality of service from employees as other 
people by: 

 ■ improving and maintaining employee 
awareness of disability and access 
issues, and relevant legislation;

 ■ improving employee skills to better 
provide services to people with 
disabilities; 

 ■ advancing the awareness of new 
employees regarding disability and 
access issues; and 

 ■ increasing employees’ knowledge and 
skills so they can receive complaints 
from people with a disability. 

People with disabilities have the same 
opportunities as other people to make 
complaints by ensuring: 

 ■ The Heritage Council Complaints 
System and Policy is accessible for 
people with disabilities and is available 
in formats to meet the needs of people 
with disabilities. 

People with disabilities have the same 
opportunities as other people to participate 
in any public consultation undertaken by 
providing:

 ■ Inclusive opportunities for people with 
disabilities to participate in any public 
consultation are provided.

Compliance with Public Sector 
Standards and Ethical Codes
State Heritage Office staff are employed under 
the employing authority of the Department 
of Local Government and have therefore 
adopted the Department’s Policies and formal 
guidelines that support the application of: 

 ■ The WA Public Sector Code of Ethics 
and Code of Conduct; 

 ■ The Department’s Code of Conduct
 ■ The Public Sector Standards in Human 

Resources Management; 
 ■ Part IX of the Equal Opportunity Act 

1984; and 
 ■ A family friendly workplace. 

Compliance with Public Sector Standards

Managers and staff are required to comply 
with the Public Sector Standards in Human 
Resource Management. 

Actions to monitor and ensure compliance 
with public sector standards include:

 ■ Recruitment Selection and Appointment 
Standard followed during recruitment 
process

 ■ An open and competitive process exists 
for acting and secondment positions 

 ■ A monitoring process is in place to 
ensure there are current performance 
management processes in place for all 
employees

 ■ Staff are advised of and encouraged 
to report non-compliance to the Public 
Information Disclosure Officer.

Compliance with Code of Conduct

The Heritage Council of Western Australia 
has its own Code of Conduct for all members 
of the Council. Where members may have 
a conflict of interest or potential conflict of 
interest in items before Council, members 
must declare that conflict of interest or 
potential conflict of interest to the Chair and be 
excused from attendance, where determined, 
on those particular items. 
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5.7 gOVERNmENT POLiCy REqUiREmENTs

Compliance with Public Sector Standards and Ethical Codes continued

Actions to Ensure Compliance

The following actions have been taken to 
ensure that all staff are aware of accountability, 
ethical decision-making, procurement 
guidelines and managing interest issues.

 ■ All staff are made aware of relevant 
matters relating to the Public Sector 
Code of Ethics and the Agency’s Code 
of Conduct. 

 ■ The staff induction program includes 
policies, guidelines on conflicts of interest 
(including declaration of secondary 
employment), and links to Department of 
Finance purchasing guidelines.

 ■ Compulsory staff training activities 
include:

 ■ Accountable and Ethical Decision 
Making

 ■ Procurement Awareness, conducted 
by the Department of Finance

 ■ Diversity Training, as provided by 
the Office of Multicultural Interests

 ■ Comprehensive information relating to 
policies and guidelines are available on 
the DLG intranet including information 
relating to the Public Sector Code of 
Ethics, Managing Interests, and issues 
relating to Integrity and Public Sector 
Standards.

Evidence of Compliance in 2011/12
 ■ Compliance issues that arose during 

2011/12 regarding public sector 
standards: no breach claims lodged.

 ■ Compliance issues that arose during 
2011/12 regarding Code of Ethics: no 
claims lodged.

 ■ Compliance with own agency Code of 
Conduct: no claims lodged. 

Record Keeping Plans
Records Management Framework

The Heritage Council is committed to 
continuously improving record keeping 
practices consistent with the State Records 
Act 2000 and aims for best practice record 
keeping practices. 

In accordance with Section 19 of the State 
Records Act 2000, the Heritage Council must 
have a record-keeping plan that has been 
approved by the State Records Commission 
under Section 23 of the Act. The current office 
Record Keeping Plan and Retention and 
Disposal Schedule was approved by the State 
Records Commission for five years in March 
2006 and was due for review in 2011/12. Due 
to the agency relocation and potential links to 
DLG’s electronic document records 
management system (EDRMS) called Tower 
Records Information Management (TRIM), and 
subsequent potential impact on record 
keeping procedures, the Heritage Council was 
granted a year extension on seeking approval 
for a new Record Keeping Plan and Retention 
and Disposal Schedule. The Heritage Council 
Record Keeping Plan and Retention and 
Disposal Schedule will be reviewed by 
October 2012.
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Record Keeping continued

Storage and Disposal 

The Heritage Council ensures safe storage of 
all files, both within the agency and through 
an off-site storage facility, for the duration of 
their retention. A regular disposal program is 
undertaken. 

Induction and Training

The Records Officer conducts regular training 
of staff in their record keeping responsibilities, 
provides guidance on record keeping practices 
and standards, and reports on record keeping 
at monthly staff forums.

The induction program addresses staff roles 
and responsibilities in regard to compliance 
with the Record Keeping Plan.

Regular File Audits indicate the efficiency and 
effectiveness of the recordkeeping training 
program and systems.

Substantive Equality
As part of DLG, the State Heritage Office 
embraces the principles of Substantive 
Equality, the public sector’s program for 
the prevention of systemic indirect forms of 
discrimination in service delivery to Indigenous 
and ethnic minority groups. 

The Heritage Council and State Heritage Office 
are committed to providing practices and 
work place cultures to ensure all community 
members can fully participate in the services 
provided by the agency. Efforts to achieve this 
include:

 ■ All staff are required to complete the 
Office of Multicultural Interest Diversity 
Training Program

 ■ All staff are educated on the WA 
Language Services Policy 2008 and 
agency specific guidelines 

Occupational Safety, Health and Injury 
Management
The Heritage Council is committed to 
occupational safety and health and injury 
management. To ensure a formal mechanism 
for reporting, an Occupational Health and 
Safety Report is a standing agenda item in 
State Heritage Office Corporate Executive 
meetings.

To ensure a safe and healthy work environment 
the following activities were conducted in 
2011/12:

 ■ fire drills carried out;
 ■ staff encouraged to report health  

and safety concerns immediately  
to managers;

 ■ issues relating to health and safety 
discussed in staff forums;

 ■ induction material provided to all 
new and existing staff members was 
reviewed, including a section on 
occupational, safety and health policies 
and procedures; 

 ■ 50% of managers trained in 
Occupational Health and Safety;

 ■ provision of influenza injections at no 
cost to staff; and

 ■ First Aid training courses offered to 
staff.

The Heritage Council provides State Heritage 
Office employees with access to Employee 
Assistance Program, which provides 
independent professional counselling services 
for staff and families.

The Heritage Council complies with DLG’s 
Injury Management Policy and is committed 
to providing injury management support to all 
employees who sustain a work related injury 
or illness, and to assist in their safe and early 
return to meaningful work, in accordance 
with the Worker’s Compensation and Injury 
Management Act 1981.

No workers’ compensation claims arose 
during the year.
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Occupational Safety, Health and Injury Management continued

Indicator Target 2011/12 Actual 2011/12

Number of fatalities Zero (0) 0

Lost time injury/diseases (LTI/D) incidence rate Zero (0) or 10% reduction on previous year 0

Lost time injury severity rate Zero (0) or 10% improvement on previous year 0

Percentage of injured workers returned to work within 28 weeks N/A N/A

Percentage of managers trained in occupational safety, health and injury 
management responsibilities

Greater than or equal to 50% 50%
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LGA No Place Name Address Interim
Fremantle 3711 Electricity Substation, Fremantle (fmr) 12,12A & 12B Parry St, Fremantle 08/07/11

Nedlands 13655 David Foulkes-Taylor Showroom (fmr) 31 Broadway, Nedlands 29/07/11

Fremantle 18772 Warehouse, 22-26 Pakenham Street 26 Pakenham St, Fremantle 29/07/11

Esperance 828 Bijou Theatre 115 Dempster St, Esperance 26/08/11

Yilgarn 2815 Masonic Hall (fmr) 14 Spica St, Southern Cross 26/08/11

Broome 299 Pa Norman’s House 47 Walcott St, Broome 02/09/11

Busselton 5337 Cattle Chosen Lot 41 Vasse Hwy, Busselton 02/09/11

Bridgetown-
Greenbushes

250 Bridgetown Trainmen's Barracks (fmr) 43 Spencer St, Bridgetown 14/10/11

Broomehill-Tambellup 3322 Martinup 1841 Broomehill-Gnowangerup Rd, Broomehill East 14/10/11

Gnowangerup 5072 Gnowangerup Noongar Centre (fmr) 7 Aylmore St, Gnowangerup 04/11/11

Yilgarn 2812 Palace Hotel 6 Orion St, Southern Cross 18/11/11

Coolgardie 562 Marvel Bar Hotel (fmr) 33 & 33A Bayley St, Coolgardie 18/11/11

Bunbury 5613 Bunbury Senior High School 10 Haig Cres, Bunbury 09/12/11

Yilgarn 2801 Our Lady of Montserrat 50 Altair St, Southern Cross 17/01/12

Quairading 4898 Toapin Weir 70 Toapin Rd, Quairading 17/01/12

Manjimup 11383 Pemberton Swimming Pool Swimming Pool Rd, Pemberton 17/01/12

Donnybrook-Balingup 5006 Lewana 1435 Balingup-Nannup Rd, Southampton 13/03/12

Corrigin 586 Corrigin Town Hall & Road Board Office (fmr) 21 Goyder St, Corrigin 01/05/12

Greater Geraldton 1662 Masonic Lodge (fmr) 43 Jose St, Mullewa 01/05/12

Claremont 7647 House & Former Milk Depot 47 Claremont Cres, Claremont 01/06/12

APPENdiCEs
APPENdix i: sTATE REgisTER OF HERiTAgE PLACEs iNTERim REgisTRATiONs 2011/12
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APPENdix ii: sTATE REgisTER OF HERiTAgE PLACEs  
PERmANENT REgisTRATiONs 2011/12

LGA No Place Name Address Interim Permanent
Claremont 11977 Barrett’s House, Scotch College 76 Shenton Rd, Swanbourne 20/05/11 26/08/11

Cambridge 13020 Holy Spirit Catholic Church 2 Keaney Pl, City Beach 21/04/11 26/08/11

Gingin 1082 Gingin Railway Station and Quarters Lot 500 Jones Rd, Gingin 04/08/92 02/09/11

Greater 
Geraldton

1051 The Hermitage Onslow St & Cathedral Ave, Geraldton 24/11/00 09/09/11

Perth 3346 Langley Park Riverside Dr, Perth 13/05/11 14/10/11

Stirling 9812 Balcatta Senior High School 31 Poincare St, Balcatta 13/05/11 18/11/11

Merredin 13516 2/1 Australian General Hospital (ruins) Lot 1450 Mackenzie Crt, Merredin 3/06/11 02/12/11

Greater 
Geraldton

1259 Geraldton to Walkaway Railway Precinct Railway Line route between Bluff Point and 
Narngulu, Geraldton

9/05/06 09/12/11

Bunbury 344 Leschenault Homestead Lot 963 Estuary Dr, Vittoria 19/05/92 20/12/11

Vincent 3133 Terrace Houses, 225-227 Beaufort Street 225 Beaufort St, Perth 03/06/11 17/01/12

Vincent 3134 Terrace Houses, 235-241 Beaufort Street 235-241 Beaufort St, Perth 03/06/11 17/01/12

Bridgetown-
Greenbushes

250 Bridgetown Trainmen's Barracks (fmr) 43 Spencer St, Bridgetown 14/10/11 17/01/12

Greater 
Geraldton

13929 Windarra 34 Glengarry Rd, Moonyoonooka 24/06/11 17/01/12

Stirling 19833 Inglewood Police Station & Police Quarters 
(fmr)

867 Beaufort St, Inglewood 24/06/11 17/01/12

Fremantle 3711 Electricity Substation 12, 12A & 12B Parry St, Fremantle 08/07/11 03/02/12

Melville 16178 Canning Bridge Canning Highway over the Swan/Canning Rivers 07/09/06 02/03/12

Dalwallinu 666 Wubin Wheatbin (fmr) Great Northern Hwy, Wubin 28/08/92 13/04/12

Gnowangerup 5072 Gnowangerup Noongar Centre (fmr) 7 Aylmore St, Gnowangerup 04/11/11 13/04/12

Yilgarn 2812 Palace Hotel 6 Orion St, Southern Cross 18/11/11 01/05/12

Esperance 828 Bijou Theatre 115 Dempster St, Esperance 26/08/11 01/05/12
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APPENdix ii: sTATE REgisTER OF HERiTAgE PLACEs  
PERmANENT REgisTRATiONs 2011/12 CONTiNUEd

LGA No Place Name Address Interim Permanent
Quairading 4898 Toapin Weir 70 Toapin Rd, Quairading 17/01/12 01/05/12

Manjimup 11383 Pemberton Swimming Pool Swimming Pool Rd, Pemberton 17/01/12 01/05/12

Nedlands 13655 David Foulkes-Taylor Showroom (fmr) 2/31 Broadway, Nedlands 29/07/11 04/05/12

Fremantle 18772 Warehouse, 22-26 Pakenham Street 26 Pakenham St, Fremantle 29/07/11 04/05/12

Yilgarn 2815 Masonic Hall (fmr) 14 Spica St, Southern Cross 26/08/11 15/05/12

Busselton 5337 Cattle Chosen Lot 41 Vasse Hwy, Bovell 02/09/11 01/06/12

Broome 299 Pa Norman's House 47 Walcott St, Broome 02/09/11 01/06/12

Peppermint 
Grove

17290 Freshwater Bay Boatsheds Freshwater Bay, Peppermint Grove 24/06/11 01/06/12

Coolgardie 562 Marvel Bar Hotel (fmr) 33 & 33A Bayley St, Coolgardie 18/11/11 22/06/12
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Applicant Project Title  Original Amount  Varied Amount 
J E & M J Clifton Alverstoke, Brunswick Junction  $ 14,129.00  $ 14,129.00 

Tracey & Larry Evans Railway Hotel (fmr), Coolgardie  $ 53,670.00  $ 53,670.00 

Croweaters Pty Ltd Prince of Wales Hotel, Bunbury  $ 100,000.00  $ 100,000.00 

Alison Lefroy Walebing  $ 50,050.00  $ 50,050.00 

Dean North 12 Dean St, Pemberton  $ 4,730.00  $ 8,305.00 

Terry King 12 Ord St, Fremantle  $ 18,221.00  $ 18,221.00 

JR & NG Patience Glengarry Station Complex, Moonyoonooka  $ 77,984.00  $ 77,984.00 

Richard Potts Atlas Building, Perth  $ 88,770.00  $ 88,770.00 

Rob Lucas Quaranup Complex, Recreation Shed  $ 29,884.00  $ 29,884.00 

Grey & Jenny Egerton-Warburton St Werburghs, Mount Barker  $ 16,262.00  $ 16,262.00 

Scots Presbyterian Church Scots Presbyterian Church, Fremantle  $ 100,000.00  $ 100,000.00 

Gregory & Leonie Wallace Aldgate, East Fremantle  $ 12,623.00  $ 12,623.00 

Terry Moran Moran's Wagin Hotel, Wagin  $ 41,249.00  $ 41,249.00 

Diane Pope Enderslea, Chittering  $ 60,440.00  $ 60,440.00 

The Owners of Boans Warehouse-Strata Plan 
32582

Boans Furniture Factory, East Perth  $ 100,000.00  $ 100,000.00 

Megaland Holdings Pty Ltd & Go Bokke Pty Ltd Colonial Tavern, Northam  $ 61,298.00  $ 61,298.00 

Neta Lavender Quindanning Hotel, Quindanning  $ 60,000.00  $ 60,000.00 

First Church of Christ, Scientist, Perth First Church Christ, Scientist, Perth  $ 27,250.00  $ 27,250.00 

Paul & Jenny Sinclair Summer Hill Group, New Norica  $ 55,000.00  $ 55,000.00 

Gemtower Trading Pty Ltd Criterion Hotel, Perth  $ 24,032.75  $ 24,032.75 

 20 Projects    $ 995,592�75  $ 999,167�75 *

*Not all of these new allocations were expensed in the current year. See page 66 for Heritage Grants Program commitments.

APPENdix iii: HERiTAgE gRANTs PROgRAm ALLOCATiONs 2011/12
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APPENdix iV: gOLdFiELds EARTHqUAkE REsTORATiON FUNd  
ALLOCATiONs 2011/12

Applicant Project Title  Original Amount  Varied Amount 

Megan Murphy House, 11 King St, Boulder $100.00  $100.00 

Gary Lewis Gaz Design & Drafting, 104 Hannan St, Kalgoorlie  $2,000.00  $2,000.00 

John & Gwen Iwankiw Ann’s Pet Shop, 79 Burt St, Boulder  $8,000.00  $8,000.00 

Goldfields Commercial Security Pty Ltd Boulder Post Office, 68 Burt St, Boulder  $20,000.00  $20,000.00 

Christine Jeffries-Stokes District Superintendent’s House (fmr), 2 Forrest St, Kalgoorlie  $20,000.00  $20,000.00 

City of Kalgoorlie-Boulder Commercial Bank, 66 Burt St, Boulder  $257,367.90  $257,367.90 

Nola Wolski Cornwall Hotel, 25 Hopkins St, South Boulder  $24,259.91  $24,259.91 

Dr Peter Mlnes & Dr Genevieve Milnes All Hallows Church, 45 Moran St, Boulder  $25,542.40  $25,542.40 

Roger Alter Western Australian Bank (fmr), 38-40 Burt St, Boulder  $4,693.33  $4,693.33 

Ted Forkin Hannans Club, corner of Maritana and Brookman Sts, Kalgoorlie  $13,365.00  $13,365.00 
Boulder Promotion & Development 
Association Inc

Palace Theatre, 127 Burt St, Boulder  $2,937.00  $2,937.00 

Tracy & Paul Browning Dr Sawells House (fmr), 121 Piesse St, Boulder  $5,280.00  $5,280.00 

Stewart McLeod Glen Devon Hotel, 1 Egan St, Kalgoorlie  $4,972.00  $4,972.00 
The Uniting Church in Australia Property 
Trust (WA)

St Pauls Uniting Church and Wesley Manse,  
41-43 Egan St, Kalgoorlie

 $263,692.00  $263,692.00 

Kylee Te-Aroha Fraser Masonic Temple (fmr), 134 Burt St, Boulder  $695,500.00  $695,500.00 

Gilbert and Shirley Johnston Flanagan's Bar, 1 McDonald St, Kalgoorlie  $26,378.00  $26,378.00 

16 Projects      $1,374,087�54*

*Not all of these new allocations were expensed in the current year. See page 66 for restoration fund commitments.
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Contact us

T:  (08) 6552 4000 
FREECALL (regional): 1800 524 000
F: (08) 6552 4001 
E: info@stateheritage.wa.gov.au
W: stateheritage.wa.gov.au

State Heritage Office  
Bairds Building  
491 Wellington Street Perth 
PO Box 7479 
Cloisters Square  
PO WA 6850

mailto:info%40stateheritage.wa.gov.au?subject=
http://stateheritage.wa.gov.au
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